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AFL Barwon Administration
Registered Office
AFL Barwon.
Highton Reserve
Roslyn Road, Highton 3216
Ph: 5241 6774
Fax: 5241 6776
Website: www.aflbarwon.com.au 

Postal Address
PO Box 6007
Highton Vic 3216

STAFF
Regional General Managers
Georgia Hillman / Sean Atkinson

Commercial Partnerships Manager/Merchandise
Nathan Ervin (Interim)

Head of Operations 
Michael Limb

Football Coordinator
Nathan Ervin / David Harris

Female Football Coordinator
Meg Hutchins

Football Director of Umpiring
Jock Hillgrove

Netball Manager
Sarah Allen

Netball Coordinators
Sophie Murley
Courtney Lino

Netball Umpire Coordinator
Vicki O’Neill

Media Coordinator
Josh Conway / Victoria Paine

Admin/Accounts Manager
Deb Thewlis

AFL Barwon Commissioners
Chairman
Craig Keating

Commissioners
Michelle Gerdtz	 Ian McTaggart
Pip Jankowski	 Nicola Wojcik
David Milsome	 Bob Hallett
Richard Underwood	

CDFNL BOARD
Peter Hickey	 Eva Callahan
Lorraine Rodger	 Peter Mulheron
Bryan Hunt	 Jim Allan
Cassie Stephens	 Sue Kerr
Daryl Wilkinson	 Sue Melican

Related Contacts

AFL Victoria Country
Club Development & Operations Manager
Darryl Collings

Geelong & District Football League President
Neville Whitley

Secretary
Alan Moore

AFL Victoria
Geelong Falcons Region Manager
Tom Lonergan

Participation Team Participation Manager
Harry Sleigh

Participation Coordinators
Mercedes Mathewson-Vardy 
Darcy Moloney 
Shanae Gething 
Ayden Gras 
Bek Lebish

AFL Barwon is here to support the passion of our stakeholders, through responsible governance and 
professional leadership, to deliver a thriving competition and sporting community

Transparent

Return to 
Play in 2021

All football and 
netball training and 

competition to resume 
in Season 2021 in 

line with COVID safe 
procedures

Accesible
& Inclusive

Re-engage and Sustain 
Participation

Re-engagement of 
existing participants to 
mirror the participation 

numbers of Season 
2019

Collaborative

Support our 
Affiliates

Provide leadership, 
communication, 

support and direction 
to all of our Affiliates 
to ensure a vibrant 

and sustainable 
competition

Strong 
& Courageous

Support 
our Staff
Ensure AFL 

Barwon staff are 
well resourced and 
engaged to deliver 

their key objectives in 
a flexible manner

Progressive 
& Proactive

Engage with 
our Partners
Work with our 

partners to continue 
to advocate and 

highlight the value of 
community football 
and netball and to 

continually improve 
relationships

OUR PURPOSE

OUR VALUES

OUR FOCUS AREAS FOR 2021

CONTACTS
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(Dec): Deceased

(Dec): Deceased

Ash, Les 1978 

Anderson, Trevor 2013

Bench, Arnie 1991 (Dec)

Bennett, Brian 1994 

Bliss, Allan 2008

Cahill, Shane 1993 (Dec)

Campigli, Norm 1984

Cayzer, Allan 

Cole, Don 1982 (Dec)

Coles, Ian 1986

Cook, David 2017

Cox, Wally 1979 Posthumously (Dec)

Cullen, Peter 2008

Donnelly, Geoff 1997

Edsall, John 2004

Evans, Ron 1986 (Dec)

Fitzgerald, Denis 1992 (Dec)

Gowans, Peter 2018

Graham, Tony 1991

Grossman, Keith 1988

Holt, Gary 2018

Hose, Frank 1987 (Dec)    

Jones, Terry 2005 (Dec)

Kinrade, Michael 1988

Lugg, Gavin 2017

Mannix, Rodney 1994 (Dec)

McDonald, Kevin 1984

McGovan, Loretto 1991

McGuane, Brian 2003 (Dec)

McLaughlin, Anne 2013

McTaggart, Ian (2011)

Menzies, Marj. 1984 (Dec)

Menzies, Ray 1982 (Dec) 

Merivale, Terry 1989

Mueller, Merrilyn 2013

Nairn, Laurie 1996 (Dec)

Norman, Edward (Ted) 1997 (Dec) 

Phillips, Lindsay 1982 (Dec)

Renfrey, Stuart 1987 (Dec)

Rhodes, Lex 1995 (Dec) 

Scheuffle, Peter 1982

Scott, Greg 2015

Thomas, Kevin 1999

Vagg, Kelvin 2004 (Dec)

Vines, Michael 2018

Walmsley, Mike 2019

Albon, John 1990

Alford, Len 2006 (Dec)

Allthorpe, Jim 1981 (Dec)

Allthorpe, Bill 2010 (Dec)

Astall, Joe (Dec)

Biviano, John 1989 (Dec)

Borrack, Les 2005 

Cahir, Bob 1994 (Dec)

Dower, Don 1982 (Dec)

Digby, Ray 2016

Connolly, Peter 2010

Emond, Terry 1991

Evans, Tony (2012)

Evans, Max 2001

Finnemore, Garry 2004 

Finnemore, Max 1999 (Dec)

Glover, David 2005

Grapsas, Jack 2003

Ivermee, Ken 2010

Healy, Jim (pre 1985) (Dec)

Holz, Richard 2009 

Johnson, Charles 2010

Jones, Bob 1985 (Dec)

Kaye, Alan 2002 (Dec)

Kelly, Peter 1996x

MacDonald, David 2007 

Manorek, Peter 2006

Masek, Jo Anne 1989 

Mathieson, Don (pre 1985) (Dec)

McArthur, Mal 1986 (Dec)

McMahon, Jock 2000

Mildred, Malcolm (pre 1985) (Dec)

Milsome, David 2018

Moore, Robert 1981 (Dec)

Murnane, John 1983

Murphy, Peter 1991 (Dec)

O’Dwyer, Noel 2010

Parrott, Darrell 1998 (Dec)

Polwarth, William 2010 (Dec)

Rankin, Cliff 1996

Roberts, John 2001

Smith, Doug 1998

Stribley, Geoff 2011

Tonkin, Arch 1977 (Dec)

Vinken, Konrad 2000

Vivian, Jim 1999 (Dec)

Wierzbowski, Andrew 2008

Winter, Noel 1983 (Dec)

(Dec): Deceased

Geoff Balderas

Don Bentley

Graham Brien

Phil Cobbledick

Robert Edwards

Jenny Fish

Narelle Frith

Matt Gannon

Michael Harrison

Neil Hawkins

Sharon Hickey

Jenny Hillman

Ted Ivermee

Gwen Koop (Dec)

John Langdon

Peter Lucas

Bob Mason

Lindsay McGrath

Colin McKenzie

Adam McNamara

Brendan McVilly

Reg McVilly

Maurice Middleton

Peter Mulheron

Brendan Murnane

Kevin Parker

Evan Robb

John Rodger (Dec)

Lorraine Rodger

Val Russell

Murray Spokes

Adam Stannard

Stephen Tillack

Dave Vessey

Donald Wheadon

Pat Whelan

GFNL LIFE MEMBERS CDFNL LIFE MEMBERS

BFNL LIFE MEMBERS

BDNA LIFE MEMBERS
Lesley Berg

Shirley Hogg

Joanne Renfrey

Karen Shapter

Helen Shepherd

Raelene Stewart

Sylvia Tomkin

Nola Jukes

Robyn Bull

Joan Hepworth

Janette Davis

Ingrid Castricum

Fran Forsyth

Sue Godfrey

Joy Grubb

Cathie Jennings

Julie Preece

Pam Rawson

Laurelle Stratton

Cathy Sullivan

Shannon Thomas

Liz Watson

Sharon Wilson

Lorraine Birch

Glenda Werrett

Michelle Davis
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This 9th Annual General Meeting of the AFL Barwon Football 
Commission Ltd signifies the formal completion of the 
2021 season of Football and Netball. Unfortunately, other 
important elements of our Community sport season have 
again been missing as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. 
Whilst we did get to complete some games and some finals 
in a truncated draw, the intervention of Covid outbreaks and 
the ensuing restrictions necessary to protect the health of 
our communities, means that we end 2021 in the most part 
unfulfilled. It is of great credit to our army of volunteers that 
we have managed to provide the structure and environment 
to keep our clubs stable and viable whilst at the same time 
affording our 23,000  participants with the opportunity to 
actively participate in our great games of Football and Netball 
in a time when active participation was needed more than ever 
before. The legacy of the work by our volunteers is that we 
can and will bounce back from the two seasons decimated by 
the pandemic.

Having managed to steer a course through lockdowns and 
pandemic induced restrictions throughout 2019 and 2020, 
AFL Barwon will now focus on the need to bounce back to full 
participation and to unlock the growth potential of our leagues 
and clubs. The 2020 Covid operational plan has served its 
purpose in enabling us to navigate through the past year but 
the strategic direction of AFL Barwon will be redeveloped in 
the coming months to set the plan for our future. The Strategic 
Plan will chart the course for the next 3-5 years and beyond.

I must acknowledge the great work of our AFL Barwon team. 
They have performed brilliantly in very difficult circumstances 
and as a result the organisation is well placed to reboot into 
season 2022. The work of both Georgia Hillman and Sean 
Atkinson during the year has been both impressive and 
appreciated. They each took on the Acting Region Manager 
role during 2021 and have steered AFL Barwon with great 
care and skill throughout. They deserve our highest praise.

We have learned a lot about dealing with adversity in recent 
years. Now is the time to use the learnings of 2019 and 2020 
to be better in 2022. Many new technologies and methods 
have been fast tracked and embedded into our lives that will 
be of ongoing benefit to our operations at Club, League and 
Commission level. There will be significant investment into the 
bounce back from Covid from all levels of Government and 
from our peak sporting bodies. AFL Barwon is cognisant of the 
need to support our volunteers to enable them to continue to 
engage with our stakeholders and will continue to advocate 
for further investment into Community Clubs. It is expected 
that there will be announcements in the coming months that 

will be well received by all stakeholders. It is appropriate 
to acknowledge the financial support received during the 
pandemic from the AFL and all levels of Government. Without 
the injection of grants and funding over the past year it 
would have been impossible to maintain our workforce and 
operations which would have left us unable to quickly build our 
capacity to bounce back from the pandemic.

With the appointment of Bruce Harwood to the role of Region 
Manager AFL Barwon will rebuild our team to full strength 
and provide the capacity to deliver the best service to our 
stakeholders and to our partners.

AFL Barwon will engage with our Umpires to find new ways 
to build the support needed to enhance the vital role Umpiring 
plays in our game. We will continue to look at ways to grow 
our football and netball participation and work with AFL 
Victoria to achieve that goal. The development team led by 
Harry Sleigh is doing great work and our junior participation 
numbers remain strong and despite the pandemic are still 
growing. We have a strong netball community and work 
effectively with Netball Victoria to ensure the growth in 
participation continues. Netball is a pivotal part of AFL Barwon 
and our stakeholders.

I would like to thank the AFL Barwon Commissioners for their 
professionalism and dedication to the governance of Football 
and Netball in the region. I think we are all very fortunate 
to have Commissioners with the skill sets to provide sound 
governance and strategic direction to the organisation. In 
particular I would like to thank Deputy Chair Michelle Gerdtz 
for her great support to me as Chair and to the Commission.

2022 is the time for us all to “bounce back” into Community 
sport. I look forward to seeing all of our stakeholders back at 
our Community clubs to enjoy the fruits of our labour. There is 
nothing better than the thought of getting back together at the 
Football or Netball and enjoying a day out at any one of our 
great clubs. Good luck to all clubs and participants for 2022. 
We will be back bigger and better than ever.

Craig Keating
Chair
AFL Barwon Football Commission Ltd.

2021 was another season of challenges and uncertainty with 
the Covid-19 pandemic impacting on our community football 
and netball competitions across the AFL Barwon Region. 
What started as a positive outlook that the dramas of 2020 
were behind us, it ended up the reason for us putting a halt to 
our seasons at the most frustrating point in time. The positive 
that we were able to get participants of all ages back playing 
community sport this year outweighs the disappointment of 
non-completed season.

In similar circumstances to the 2020 season, there was a 
constant monitoring of State Government announcements 
and consultation with local health experts meant AFL Barwon 
staff had to continually provide updates to clubs on the state 
of play. The AFL Barwon region was one of the final regions 
to declare a cancellation to our seasons after Victorian 
Government’s Roadmap to deliver the National Plan didn’t 
allow community sport to continue within the timeframes of our 
season dates. Whilst we continued to push the season dates 
back, unfortunately time eventually was against us.

It can’t be underestimated the amount of work and time it 
required for volunteers to make sure football and netball was 
able to be played in 2021. There were extra responsibilities 
and requirements enforced on clubs each training night 
or match day as per Government restrictions. Every club 
volunteer from the President through to the COVID marshals 
need to be thanked for their efforts this season. We thank the 
clubs for their continuous support of AFL Barwon this year.

Whilst there wasn’t a full season of Football and Netball 
completed, there were some key projects that took place 
throughout the season. The G21 & AFL Barwon Regional 
Strategy – Towards 2030 received final approval and adoption 
by all 5 local government areas. This strategy will give the 
region a full understanding of the investment requirements 
into infrastructure and the strong plans to be put in place to 
drive our sports forward. There were also projects undertaken 
looking at the junior netball competition structures and junior 
football pathways in the Colac Region. This two projects are 
key for the long-term sustainability of the region and to ensure 
participation and enjoyment continues to thrive.

AFL Barwon is fortunate to have many long-term and loyal 
partners who have shown unwavering support in 2021, 
despite the tough economic climate, we are extremely grateful 
for this. To all of our valued partners who make significant 
contributions, we cannot thank you enough and we hope to 
continue to strengthen these relationships into the future as 
we strive to create safe and inclusive environments at all 
clubs. 

We could not be prouder of AFL Barwon’s staff over the 
last twelve months. The level of commitment each staff 
member has shown to their position, the organisation and the 
wonderful clubs and volunteers that make up our region has 
enabled us as an organisation to get through this challenging 
period and begin to plan for the future. All staff have gone 
above and beyond while feeling the challenges and they 
should be commended for the role they have played. The staff 
at AFL Barwon are not only fantastic at what they do, but are 
great people which is benefit to the Region.

We would also like to thank the AFL Barwon Commission, 
led by Chairman Craig Keating and Michelle Gerdtz. The 
Commission has made sound governance decisions and 
continue to provide outcomes that have the best interest of 
the entire region at the forefront of their minds. Our region is 
a strong one, and a sound financial position will continue to 
progress the future of football and netball well beyond 2021. 
This year there have been many learnings and the challenges 
will continue, but the learnings will allow us to improve and 
refine our practices.

A further thank you to AFL Victoria and Netball Victoria 
on their guidance and support over the past 12 months in 
navigating through updated restrictions and protocols. The 
Colac & District FNL Board, in particular to Chairmen Peter 
Hickey. Thank you also to Neville Whitley and the GDFNL 
Board for their collaboration this season. A special thank you 
also to Rob Vines and the Geelong Cricket Association Board 
for their collaboration.

We look forward to returning to a 2022 season where we 
see our community enjoying the great games of football and 
netball back to some normality. 

Sean Atkinson
Acting Region General Manager
AFL Barwon 

Goergia Hillman
Acting Region General Manager
AFL Barwon

CHAIR REPORT AGM 2021
CRAIG KEATING 

GENERAL MANAGERS REPORT
SEAN ATKINSON / GEORGIA HILLMAN
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COMMERCIAL MANAGERS REPORT CDFNL CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
NATHAN ERVIN PETER HICKEY

It is with both pride and disappointment that I am writing the 
2021 presidents report. We started the year full of hope and 
optimism that we would not only get through a full 18 rounds 
of football and netball but all finals and our junior interleague 
fixture plus all netball representative games.

The year started with plenty of interest and a lot of supporters 
back to local sport for the first time in a year with 2019 
cancelled due to covid. This not only gave the clubs hope but 
we all realised that we not only missed the sporting side but 
also the social side of each weekend coming together as a 
community.

The season ticked along for the first 8 rounds before the first 
lockdown came but we were still able to get junior games 
played during this period which in hindsight was a very good 
decision to continue with these. I must give praise to all the 
clubs as this was difficult for them as the rules continued to 
change but they all worked together to get our future senior 
players on the ground and courts.

We then were allowed to continue our senior competitions 
but under very tight restrictions. This again made it difficult 
for clubs but after talking to them it was evident that they just 
wanted normality in our community and to play sport. Again, a 
big ask from them to play with no crowds but they did it to the 
best of their ability.

But after a couple of weeks, it was not to be as covid again 
derailed our season. We as a board did everything within our 
powers to get it done but in the end the decisions were out of 
our hands, and we had to concede defeat which was a very 
bitter pill to swallow.

We held our junior and senior vote counts online for the first 
and hopefully the last time. 

Congratulations to all our winners and runners up in each 
grade.

In closing I want to thank the club administrators and club 
volunteers that kept at the task of trying to get the season 
done. It was difficult for all involved at club level. 

A big thank you to all the staff at AFL Barwon and their 
continued support of our league. To the commission lead by 
Craig Keating a huge thank you and a personal thank you for 
the many phone calls and late-night conversations that were 
had to get our season done.

Finally, to the CDFNL board. This year was like no other and I 
am extremely proud of the efforts and work put in to keep the 
season going. The many hours put in by you all is something 
you can be all proud of.

Peter Hickey
CDFNL Chairman
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Through the challenges of 2020 we were certainly adaptable 
to what we were provided in terms of on field/court play in 
2021. It was great to nearly complete the season and we were 
again blown away by the generous support of our partners. 
AFL Barwon would not have been able to operate without the 
backing of our partners and we are so grateful for that. 

The interrupted season aside we were thrilled to welcome 
K rock onboard as broadcast partners who were able to 
broadcast a number of our GFNL senior football matches, 
which was enjoyed by the comment and highlight for our 
region. We are fortunate to have an AFL level commentary 
team broadcasting our games and we look forward to 
continuing our relationship into 2022 and the future. We’d like 
to thank K rock for their support.

I would specifically like to recognise Buckley’s for their 
generous contribution of a massive $10,000 to our AFL 
Barwon clubs. This is a true example of partnership within our 
community and we cannot thank Buckley’s enough. Now that 
hospitality is back up and running we highly encourage our 
AFL Barwon community to head down to Buckley’s for a meal, 
as a way to support them.

I also wanted to highlight continued support from our naming 
rights partners for 2022:

- �	Blood Toyota will be continuing on with us as GFNL Naming 
Rights partner until at least the end of 2023.

- �Dow Company is locked in as BFNL Naming Rights partner 
until at least the end of 2023, taking them to almost 40 years 
of partnership.

- �	Epworth will continue as our Naming Rights Partner of our 
Female Competition.

I would also like to welcome our new partners K rock, BFT, 
Kings Funerals, Zena Sports and The Academy. It’s great 
to have you on board and look forward to progressing our 
partnerships in the seasons to come.

We are so proud to partner with these businesses and their 
on-going support will assist us in continuing to deliver the 
highest standard of football and netball.

We have many more signings to come, so watch this space!

Again, we could not be prouder of our amazing partners and 
the support we have received. We can’t wait to put another 
interrupted season behind us and kick off 2022 with a bang!

Nathan Ervin
Commercial Manager
AFL Barwon Football Commission Ltd.
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Senior Football & Under 19 Football
After the disappointment of 2020 where we were unable 
to play any Senior football, 2021 commenced with great 
excitement and measured optimism. Whilst some protocols 
were still required, a sense of “normality” began to emerge, 
and it was extremely rewarding to have footy back. Sadly, the 
events that followed created an incredibly difficult situation 
with ongoing uncertainties and interruptions to playing and 
training. All clubs did an amazing job to remain positive, 
patient, and compliant with each of the challenges that were 
presented. The resilience of all involved is to be commended. 
Unfortunately, only the BFNL Seniors, Reserves and Under 
19 Division 2 were able to commence a final series, but after 
one week were unable to progress any further. The highest 
ranked teams at the time all seasons were cancelled will be 
acknowledged.

Under 19s
We conducted 3 divisions with,10,8 & 4 teams competing 
respectively in each division. At the time seasons were 
cancelled, St Joseph’s were ladder leaders in Division 1, 
Drysdale were on top of Division 2 and Belmont Lions led 
Division 3.

There was a significant drop in team numbers with only 22 
teams entered after having 28 teams in 2019. No club entered 
a 2nd team in their own right, Sth Barwon and St Joseph’s 
entered a combined 2nd team, 14 clubs were unable to field 
a team in that age group, Modewarre & Queenscliff entered a 
combined side. Whilst there were a range of mitigating factors 
for this year’s decline in numbers following the Covid affected 
2020, it continued a disturbing trend at this age level.

Data has been reviewed and feedback sought during the 
course of 2020 to determine the success of the changed age 
groups. It was concluded from all the evidence provided that 
this age group was not a viable option, and it was determined 
that we will revert to Under 18s for 2022 and beyond. All other 
age groups below will also be amended accordingly to provide 
two year age differences.

BFNL
Torquay finished the BFNL Seniors 12 home and away games 
on top of the ladder undefeated. Modewarre, Barwon Heads, 
Ocean Grove and Anglesea were hard to separate filling the 
other finals spots. Torquay capped off a dominant season with 
their spearhead Lucas Anderson winning the BFNL League 
goal kicking with 56 goals, Midfielder James Darke taking 
out the Les Ash Medal. Mitch Taylor from Ocean Grove was 
recognised as the BFNL Rookie of the year.

GFNL
St Mary’s and Colac were again the dominant sides in GFNL 
Seniors, with Colac experiencing their only loss for the season 
to St Mary’s in the 11th and ultimately final completed round. 
St Mary’s finished the season undefeated on top of the ladder 
with only a draw to Newtown & Chilwell breaking their winning 
streak. Sth Barwon, Bell Park, Geelong West Giants & St 
Joseph’s were the other finals contenders with Grovedale 
not far behind them. The Mathieson medal was an emphatic 
victory to St Mary’s young gun Harry Benson. Rookie of the 
year winner Tom Gillett from Grovedale also won the Goal 
kicking with 42 Goals.

CDFNL
The Colac & District FNL season started brightly, but a related 
Covid scare resulted in the round 3 clash between Simpson 
and Alvie being postponed until later in the season. 

At the conclusion of 12 completed rounds Alvie headed the 
ladder with them and South Colac only experiencing one 
loss each. They were the dominant teams in the Senior 
competition being six points head of nearest rival Irrewarra-
Beeac.

The Mahoney Medal was won by Apollo Bay recruit Brad King 
who narrowly edged out another seasoned campaigner in 
Irrewarra-Beeac’s Ben Lavars by one vote. Alvie spearhead 
Dominic Dare took out the Goalkicking award with 59 goals 
and Tyler Black from South Colac was selected by the 
coaches as the recipient of the Max Gray award for best 
Under 21 player.

I would like to acknowledge the amazing efforts of our 
staff, our Operations team in particular worked tirelessly to 
maximise the opportunities for us to conduct a season through 
extremely difficult and uncertain times. With an inordinate 
amount of personnel changes and limited experience, all 
staff stepped straight up to the plate and displayed incredible 
professionalism throughout the year. The difficulties and 
challenges were equally shared at club level, and I would 
again like to express my appreciation to all the club volunteers 
for their hours of work, patience and understanding as they 
ensured all the required tasks were performed in a timely and 
efficient manner. They are often thankless tasks but are vital 
and very much appreciated by all here at AFL Barwon. 

Michael Limb
Head of Operations
AFL Barwon

FOOTBALL OPERATIONS REPORT FEMALE FOOTBALL REPORT
MICHAEL LIMB MEG HUTCHINS

The growth of Female Football in the region continued to rise 
with 68 Teams entered across 9 divisions, competing within 
the following: 3 Senior competitions, 1 Under 18 competition, 
3 Under 15 competitions and 1 competition respectively for 
both the Under 12 and Under 10 Divisions. These numbers 
demonstrate a 5% increase in Female teams entered to 
compete since 2019.

Talent pathways are strong with the Falcons, VFLW and AFLW 
competitions all tapping into the talent we are uncovering and 
nurturing.

The season itself was challenging, with several COVID-19 
enforced lockdowns to navigate through. In total, 4 regulation 
rounds were cancelled due to lockdowns – and the final 2 
games of the finals series were ultimately lost. This meant we 
were unfortunately not able to award a Premier for the 2021 
Season. 

It is important however, to acknowledge the teams who 
finished the season as the highest ranked in their respective 
competitions at the time the seasons were cancelled. Well 
done to the following teams: Newtown & Chilwell (Sen D1), 
Drysdale (Sen D2), St Joseph’s (Sen D3), Geelong West 
Giants (U18), Newtown & Chilwell Higgins (U15 D1), Barwon 
Heads (U15 D2).

The 2021 award winners were, Senior Female Best & Fairest 
winners were Grovedale’s Isabella Hill in Division 1, North 
Geelong’s Temikka Beeston in Division 2, and St Joseph’s 
Charlotte Simpson in Division 3. In the Under 18 and Under 
15 divisions respectively, the Best and Fairest award winners 
were Newtown & Chilwell’s Mekah Morrissey (U18), Newtown 
& Chilwell’s Sara Howley (U15 D1), and joint winners of U15 
D2 - Michaela Payne (Barwon Heads) & Sienna Mallon (Colac 
Imperials).

Meg Hutchins
Female Football Co-ordinator
AFL Barwon
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GFNL
With only limited netball played throughout 2020, it was 
great to be able to gain some momentum at the beginning 
of the 2021 season. Clubs and their volunteers adapted to 
everything that was thrown at them to keep the season alive 
and members safe in what was another unique season. While 
it may not have been what we all imagined, there was still 
some terrific netball games across 11 rounds, with Newtown & 
Chilwell and Colac holding the top two spots at the conclusion 
of the season. Congratulations to Newtown & Chilwell for 
finishing top of the ladder for 2021.

Congratulations Kaitlyn Sheringham of Bell Park and Victoria 
Honner of St Josephs for being dual winners of the A Grade 
Best and Fairest medal in 2021. It was very tight at the top 
with only 3 votes separating the top 13 vote getters!

With a new netball department coming on board after the 
season had commenced, we cannot thank all clubs enough for 
the patience and assistance through this transition. Courtney, 
Vicki and myself are very grateful for you all.

To Vicki, Heather, Shirl & Mark, who ensured our games 
were able to go ahead through rostering panel, mentoring 
our umpires and further developing the AFL Barwon Umpire 
Program. We appreciate all the time and effort you have put in 
and look forward to a more complete season in 2022.

To our corporate partners, thank you for your continued 
support. Buckleys, Blood Toyota, Epworth, Medibank, 
G-Force, Kempe & Corio Bay have supported our 
competitions for many years now and we look forward to their 
ongoing support.

To Mel Taylor and Maddie Okely from Netball Victoria, thank 
you for your support throughout this season. Your assistance 
has assisted Courtney and I in our transition as Netball 
Coordinators and appreciate your continued support

Junior Netball
It was fantastic to see netball back in full swing, with over 
120 teams across 10 divisions entered into our Tuesday 
and Friday night junior competitions. With 13 rounds and a 
week of finals, we were fortunate enough to play almost a full 
season! However, junior netball this year was also impacted 
by interruptions and capacity restrictions. This resulted in 
clubs needing to be agile and adaptable on many occasions 
this season & we cannot thank our members and volunteers 

enough for their patience and understanding in our first 
season as netball coordinators at AFL Barwon. Without you 
all, we wouldn’t have been able to keep the season alive. 

While restrictions changed the way things ran in 2021, it 
did allow some clubs to host several games throughout 
the season. It was great to see some teams being able to 
develop a connection with their club and enjoy a slightly 
different netball experience. We appreciate the time and effort 
contributed by these clubs to keep our competitions alive. 
While disappointing to not be able to complete the finals 
series, we were able to witness some very exciting games, 
with many going into extra time! Congratulations to all of you 
for making it this far, and we look forward to some equally as 
exciting finals throughout our Summer Competition!

Thank you to Ocean Grove FNC for hosting our 11/U 
competition, and Ellie our intern for her role in this competition.

Thanks again to Vicki, Shirl, Mark and our Mentors for 
their education and assistance of our umpire development 
program. You’ve all contributed many Tuesdays and Fridays 
throughout the year, and we look forward to what the future 
brings.

Our representative program has also looked a little different 
this year, with Association Championships being rescheduled 
until late November. Thank you to our coaches, Paula and 
Jess, for your commitment throughout this season. We wish 
you and all players & umpires the best for November’s talent 
identification day.

Lastly, thank you to Corio Bay 
Health Group for sponsoring 
our junior competition and we 
look forward to a bigger and 
better season 2022.

Sophie Murley 
Netball Coordinator

BFNL
Wow what an introduction to the AFL Barwon Netball 
community! The 2021 season has been filled with many twists 
and turns with multiple state-wide lockdowns impacting our 
competition. The season started off strong, having played out 
8 rounds consecutively, before a statewide snap lockdown 
was announced. After a testing 3-week break, our teams were 
straight back out on court playing some incredible netball. A 
huge congratulations to the many milestones achieved this 
season, both on and off the court. 

The Bellarine FNL worked tirelessly to get the first week 
of our 2021 finals series off the ground. The weekend at 
Portarlington was a great success, with all clubs working 
collectively to abide by all COVID regulations. A big thank you 
to the Lions Club for providing venue security, the weekend 
would not have run as smoothly as it did without your help. 
After a weekend filled with some remarkable netball, we were 
once again placed into a lockdown situation that bought our 
2021 Home & Away season to an end. Congratulations to 
all teams who made it this far and remain part of the 2021 
BFNL Finals Series. Thank you to Portarlington for hosting our 
competition, your continued support is greatly appreciated by 
all here at AFL Barwon. 

Congratulations to the Geelong Amateurs, who remained 
undefeated resulting in yet another top spot finish for the 2021 
A grade competition. A special mention to the Torquay Tigers 
FNC who also had a very successful season, having taken 
out the overall Club Championship title. Congratulations to our 
BFNL A Grade Best & Fairest winner Jessica Standfield on yet 
another impressive year out on the netball court.   

Thank you to our competition sponsors, DOW, Buckleys, 
Epworth, Medibank, Geelong Advertiser, G-Force, Kempe, 
and Corio Bay, for your ongoing support. Our ability to run this 
competition would not be possible without you all. 

To the club volunteers who work incredibly hard to ensure our 
competition can continue, we thank you all for your time and 
effort this season. Sophie and I are extremely grateful for your 
support and patience as we continue to learn a grown within 
the AFL Barwon Netball department. Finally, thank you to 
Sean Atkinson for your guidance and direction, Sophie and I 
could not have done this without you. 

Well-done and congratulations to all. Bring on the 2022 
season!

CDFNL
The 2021 season has been filled with many twists and turns 
with multiple state-wide lockdowns impacting the CDFNL 
netball competition. The season started strong, having played 
out 8 rounds consecutively, before a statewide snap lockdown 
was announced. After a testing 3-week break, our teams were 
straight back out on court playing some fantastic netball. A 
huge congratulations to the many milestones achieved this 
season, both on and off the court. 

Our return to play plans were short lived with yet another 
statewide lockdown occurring in the back half of the season. 
Our final return to play in round 17, saw the end of our 2021 
home & away season. Whilst this was not an ideal way to 
end such a crazy year, I must congratulate all clubs and their 
volunteers who worked tirelessly to ensure our competition 
continued. All your hard work and dedication to our netball 
competition does not go unnoticed and we here at AFL 
Barwon are extremely grateful. 

Congratulations to Alvie FNC for yet another successful year, 
finishing in top position at the conclusion of the home & away 
season. Special mention to Irrewarra Beeac FNC who also 
had a great year, taking out the Club Championship award. 
Congratulations to young gun Grace Garner from Irrewarra 
Beeac, for winning the A Grade Best & Fairest award and the 
Simpson FNC 19&Under Emma McVilly Rising Star award. 
To receive both these awards is a great achievement and you 
should be incredibly proud of all your hard work this season.  

To the CDFNL board, thank you for your guidance and support 
as I have settled into the new role. This year has not been 
easy, but your commitment to the growth and success of 
our competition speaks volumes. I would like to express my 
deepest thanks to Lorraine Rodger, who has been my go-to 
when needing assistance, advice, and a friendly chat. Your 
wealth of knowledge about the CDFNL netball league has 
been critical to its success and I cannot thank you enough.   

Finally, to all 10 CDFNL clubs, thank you for your patience 
and understanding during another year of unknowns. All clubs 
have been able to adapt and overcome any obstacle thrown 
your way. The love each one of you have for your clubs and 
our sport is second to none and sets an example of others. 
Thank you. 

Well-done and congratulations to all. Bring on the 2022 
season!  

Courtney Lino 
Netball Operations Coordinator. 

NETBALL OPERATIONS REPORT NETBALL OPERATIONS REPORT
Sophie Murley Courtney Lino



17AFL BARWON 2021 ANNUAL REPORTAFL BARWON 2021 ANNUAL REPORT16

The future of football in the AFL Barwon region has never 
been stronger, this year local Auskick participants grew by 
over 20% from 2019 to their highest ever level 3,932, the 
largest regional growth across the whole of Australia. AFL 
Barwon club participation saw similar levels of participation as 
the 2019 season which is a testament to all clubs providing 
a safe environment after a Covid effected year. The growth 
of participation in the region can be attributed to all the 
amazing work of volunteers across the region. Volunteers did 
a remarkable job of ensuring all participants had a safe and 
successful return to the football field. 

The key focus areas for the AFL Barwon Participation strategy 
for 2021 have been to build the participation base at Auskick 
level, work on transition and retention programs within our 
junior competitions and look to embed diversity and inclusion 
in everything we do.  

Building the Base 
The key to us building a successful base with the local clubs at 
grass roots level this year has been through the engagement 
of primary school children. Our team were able to deliver in 
school programs promoting Auskick to over 70 Schools across 
Term 1, 2 & 3, handing out flyers to approximately 5,500 kids.

Transition and Retention 
A main focus of our team is keeping our participants engaged 
year on year. This season we worked with a number of junior 
clubs aiding in the transition of Auskick participants to Junior 
Football next season, our aim is to ensure parents and the 
participants feel prepared and have a clear idea of what the 
junior pathway is available to them. In addition to this we want 
to ensure our participants are enjoying their experience, after 
completing a survey and receiving live feedback we were able 
to work with clubs in the Barwon region to run Gala events to 
help retain participants for future seasons.

Diversity and Inclusion
We have been working closely with the Geelong Cats this 
season in the North Geelong community running a number of 
different programs. Running a 4 week after school program 
with the Northern Bay Campus’ transitioning a large portion 
of these participants into their local Auskick Centre, allowing 
many children who had never played football the opportunity 
to develop new skills. Additionally, ‘Welcome to Geelong’ was 
a huge success with 150 participants coming down to GMHBA 
to learn about Australian Rules Football! We would like to 
thank Geelong Football Club for all their support this year.

Highlights 
Record Auskick Participation - AFL Barwon boasted their 
highest participation in the Auskick program ever, up 672 
participants on 2019.  

Record Female Participation - AFL Barwon hit their highest 
ever participation in Female Football with 2,031 participants 
and 66 teams taking part in AFL Barwon competitions. 

Footy4Fun Project - Running an Auskick to Junior Football 
transition program/competition with neighbouring clubs looking 
to improve the number of kids making the transition into junior 
football. 

Project 50 - 130 Kids participated in an After School Auskick 
Program ran at Northern Bay College, with majority of these 
children transitioning to the Northern Stars Auskick Centre.

Auskick Centre Check In - Our Local Participation 
Coordinators made over 60 visits to local Auskick centres in 
2021, providing Auskick centres valuable support, feedback 
and advice to ensure the best possible experience to 
participants. 

The AFL Barwon Participation team would again like to thank 
all the volunteers they have worked with in 2021.  After a 
Covid effected year in 2020 participation in the region this year 
was about clubs and Auskick centres getting football back up 
and running in a safe environment for participants. Volunteers 
did a fantastic job of letting football in the region prosper in 
2021. We cannot wait to start working on participation in the 
region for 2022!

Harry Sleigh 
Participation Manager 
AFL Barwon Region

Mercedes Mathewson-Vardy 
Participation Coordinator 
AFL Barwon Region

Ayden Gras 
Participation Coordinator 
South and West Geelong

Bek Lebish 
Participation Coordinator  
North and East Geelong

Darcy Moloney 
Participation Coordinator 
Colac and District

Shanae Gething 
Participation Coordinator 
Bellarine and Surf Coast

In another clouded COVID-19 year it was again evident why 
the Barwon Region is regarded as one of the premier junior 
competitions in the country and that’s because of the people 
that make it. The passion and commitment from all areas of 
the region’s clubs show why they continue to grow the game, 
produce fantastic footballers and maintain strong senior 
competitions. This year saw the players come back in strong 
numbers, continuing to grow participation with junior football 
team numbers of 348 teams competing in junior female and 
male competitions. This surpasses the team entries of 2019. 
It was disappointing that we didn’t get to see the end to the 
season as we had hoped, but there does look to be light at the 
end of the tunnel and we hope for an uninterrupted 2022.

We continue to see amazing growth of female participation 
across the various junior age groups and with the introduction 
of the U10 female competition it will no doubt bolster the 
senior competitions in coming years.

A huge thank you to our partners who have contributed in 
season 2021, especially the Geelong Junior Football naming 
right sponsors - Buckley’s, Kempe - Read The Play, Geelong 

Advertiser, Medibank, Corio Bay Health Group, Gforce and 
Bendigo Bank. Without your generosity it would be impossible 
to run such a great competition.

To all club coaches, team managers, trainers and volunteers, 
thank you for all your hard work. It certainly doesn’t go 
unnoticed and without your dedication the competitions 
wouldn’t be possible.

To the players that were part of AFL Barwon Junior Football 
throughout the year, a huge thanks and I hope that you 
continue your footballing journey in 2022.

Thank you to the Junior Coordinators for all the tireless work 
that is put in behind the scenes. Your resilience and attention 
to detail on picking up the latest AFL Victoria Return to Play 
Protocols ensured the games were played in safe manner. It 
was a pleasure to work with you all and hope you all continue 
in 2022.

Nathan Ervin
Football Coordinator
AFL Barwon 

JUNIOR FOOTBALL REPORT
NATHAN ERVIN

AFL BARWON
PARTICIPATION REPORT
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In 2021 the Covid lockdowns resulted in 33% of scheduled 
rounds not being conducted and only one weekend of 
finals for female football and BFNL being played. There 
were 22% less reports laid than in 2019, so the net number 
demonstrates a small increase in reports laid across the 
competitions in games played.

There was a total of 60 reports laid across AFL Barwon 
Leagues in the 2021 season. This was a drop of 17 from 2019 
(no games played in 2020).

These reports comprised 
43 Senior Grade	 3 Reserve Grade, 
2 Under 19s	 10 from Junior Grades, 
0 Netball	 2 from Female Football
They include 5 reports referred as a result of investigations, 
25 that were referred by the Match Review Panel and 30 that 
were reported by the officiating umpires.

35 players accepted the set penalty option.  A total of 90 
matches will be or have been missed by players through 
suspensions received in 2021. A significant increase of 19 
from last year given there was only 67% of matches played.

Our Match Review Panel assessed 108 requests. 25 of these 
were of incidents reported on the day by the officiating umpire.

No vision – 21
Inconclusive vision – 3
Not reportable – 48

They found 16 reportable offences. 13 of these players 
accepted set penalties, 3 players challenged their charge at 
tribunal, 4 clubs were fined for engaging in Melee. Of the 3 
that were heard at Tribunal, 2 were found guilty. 

Our appreciation is extended to the members of the MRP who 
volunteered their time on a weekly basis to assess relevant 
footage as requested and provide their judgements. Tribunal 
results would indicate that their judgements were appropriate.

I would like to congratulate and thank Amanda Evans who 
took on the role of Tribunal Chairperson for 2022. Amanda 
provided professional leadership that complemented 
the astute and consistent delivery of fair and reasonable 
judgements by all panel members. Arthur Hodgson continued 
his excellent work as our League Prosecutor and ensures the 
most informed and balanced decisions can be made by the 
Tribunal Panel.. 

I would again like to thank Rob Drew for his work as Tribunal 
Secretary with the co-ordination, scheduling and running of 
the Tribunal sessions, I would also like to thank our Director 
of Umpiring Jock Hillgrove for his work coordinating and 
organizing the umpires in their role.

Michael Limb
Tribunal Co-Ordinator 

LEAGUE TOTAL
REPORTS SUSTAINED NOT

GUILTY REPRIMAND SET
PENALTY WITHDRAWN

GFNL 7 1 0 0 5 0
BFNL 20 3 1 0 13 3
GDFL 19 5 3 1 9 3
U19s 2 2 0 0 0 0

AFLBJ 10 2 0 0 8 0
AFLBW 2 1 1 0 0 0
Netball 0 0 0 0 0 0
Totals 60 14 5 1 35 6

MATCH 
REVIEWS

UMPIRE 
REPORTS REQUESTED TRIBUNAL SUSTAINED SET

PENALTY REPRIMAND FINED NOT
GUILTY

NO
CHARGE WITHDRAWN NO

VISION

GFNL 3 28 0 0 3 0 1 0 15 1 11
BFNL 9 28 3 3 10 1 0 0 17 3 3
GDFL 13 27 4 3 11 3 1 1 11 4 7
Totals 25 83 7 6 24 4 2 1 43 8 21

INVESTIGATIONS REQUESTED TRIBUNAL SUSTAINED NOT
GUILTY

NOT 
REFERRED WITHDRAWN MEDIATION SET

PENALTY

GFNL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
BFNL 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
GDFL 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 0

CDFNL 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0
U19s 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

AFLBJ 3 0 0 0 1 0 0 2
AFLBW 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Netball 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Totals 6 2 1 1 1 0 0 3

MRP

TRIBUNAL Investigations

UMPIRING REPORT TRIBUNAL REPORT
Jock Hillgrove MICHAEL LIMB

It is with great pleasure that I present this year’s AFL Barwon 
Umpiring Department Annual Report.

Firstly, and foremost, I would like to thank all umpire’s, Club 
and League appointed, in the Region for their dedication, 
commitment and resilience in what was another Covid 19 
impacted season.

Although it was disappointing to not be able to close off the 
season properly, you all fronted up week in week out and I 
know the entire Football Community is very appreciative of 
this.

We saw an increase in our registered umpire numbers from 
2020 (425) to 2021 (451), we were still down from 2019 
(507), this was a positive outcome for our Region with the 
uncertainty we all experienced.

Our AFL Barwon Umpiring Coaches team remained 
unchanged from previous seasons. I would like to personally 
thank you all for an outstanding season in your approach, 
support and development of the umpire groups. To Adam 
Edwick (AFL Barwon – Colac), Darren Santospirito and John 
Tatnell (AFL Barwon - Geelong) your service to Community 
Umpiring and Football is a great achievement and although 
you have now stepped away from your roles, you leave a 
great legacy for those who follow.

We take this opportunity to also thank Cam McGregor 
(Ocean Grove Cobras) for your drive and determination 
in resetting the Cobras Umpire Academy for 2021 at your 
club, with 21 junior footballers participating in umpiring your 
non-competitive age groups, player/umpires transitioning to 
League Appointed Umpiring, the program has come along 
in leaps and bounds and is the benchmark for Umpire/club 
engagement in our Region. As the program expands in 2022 
we look further for more clubs wanting to be involved.

The AFL Barwon Umpiring Academy assisted by AFL Victoria 
saw most of the umpires involved exposed to appointments in 
NAB Boys, NAB Girls, VFLW games, with ongoing expansion 
of the Academies and a genuine pathway to State League 
positions we are in a strong position to further establish our 
Talent Pathway for Umpires as one of the best in the State.

AFL Barwon Umpiring thanks the CDFUA and GFUL for their 
ongoing support of umpires and their members, a rewarding 
and challenging role for your Boards, by working together 
for the betterment of umpiring in the Region. Thank you to 
Craig Kerr (CDFUA) and Leigh Johnstone (GFUL) for your 
leadership.

In closing I would like to thank David Harris for his role within 
the AFL Barwon Umpiring Department, he has assisted me 
enormously and I look forward to greater growth in the role in 
2022.

To Andrew Talbot and AFL Victoria, AFL Umpiring Department, 
we thank you for your ongoing support in 2021.

To all my fellow colleagues at AFL Barwon I am immensely 
proud of all your work in 2021, we have had many challenges 
thrown at us, albeit with the stop/start nature of lockdowns.

Jock Hillgrove
Regional Director of Umpiring
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Club Senior Reserve Women's U19 U17 U15 U13 U11 U10 U9 U18 
Girls

U15 
Girls

U12 
Girls

U12 
Girls

Club 
Totals

Aireys Inlet 1 1 2

Anakie 1 1 0.5 0.5 0.5 3.5

Anglesea 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 8

Armstrong Creek 1 1 1 3

Bannockburn 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 13

Barwon Heads 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 18

Bell Park 1 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 1 13

Bell Post Hill 1 1 1 1 1 1 6

Belmont Lions 1 1 1 1 1 5

Colac 1 1 1 1 1 1 6

Colac Imperials 1 1 2

Corio 1 1 0.5 0.5 0.5 3.5

Drysdale 1 1 1 1 1 2 1.5 1 1 2 1 0.5 14

East Geelong 1 1 1 1 0.5 0.5 1 1 1 8

Geelong Amateur 1 1 1 1 1 3 4 2 2 2 1 1 1 21

Geelong West Giants 2 2 2 2 1.5 2 1 1 1 1 1 16.5

Grovedale 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 1 2 1 1 16

Inverleigh 1 1 1 1 1 1 6

Lara 1 1 1 1 2 2 3 1 2 3 1 2 1 21

Leopold 1 1 1 1 2 1.5 1 1 2 1 1 13.5

Lethbridge 1 1 2

Little River 0.5 0.5 0.5 1.5

Modewarre 1 1 0.5 1 1 2 1 1 1 9.5

Newcomb 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 0.5 1 1 10.5

Newtown & Chilwell 1 1 1 1 1 2 3 2 3 4 1 1 1 22

North Geelong 1 1 1 3

North Shore 1 1 1 0.5 0.5 0.5 4.5

Ocean Grove 1 1 1 2 3 4 4 3 6 2 2 2 31

Peninsula Sharks 0

Portarlington 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 2 0.5 10.5

Queenscliff 1 1 0.5 1 1 1 1 1 7.5

South Barwon 1 1 1 1.5 1 2.5 3 2 4 4 1 1 1 24

St Albans 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0.5 0.5 10

St Joseph's 1 1 1 1.5 2 2.5 4 2 1 3 1 1 1 22

St Mary's 1 1 2 1 2 4 2 2 2 3 0.5 1 1 22.5

Surf Coast Suns 1 3 2 2 3 0.5 1 12.5

Thomson 1 1 1 0.5 1 1 5.5

Torquay 1 1 1 1 3 4 5 3 3 6 1 1.5 1 31.5

Werribee Centrals 1 1 1 3

Winchelsea 1 1 2

TOTAL 34 34 18 22 29 48 58 44 37 62 10 19 16 3 434

SENIOR JUNIOR
Club A Grade B Grade C Grade D Grade E Grade 11 & 

Under
13 & 

Under
15 & 

Under
17 & 

Under
19 & 

Under
Club 

Totals

Anglesea 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 11

Bannockburn 2 2 1 1 6

Barwon Heads 1 1 1 1 1 2 3 3 2 1 16

Bell Park 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 3 2 1 15

Colac 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 1 11

Drysdale 1 1 1 1 2 3 3 2 1 15

East Geelong 1 1

Geelong Amateur 1 1 1 1 1 5 5 3 2 1 21

Geelong West Giants 1 1 1 1 1 1 4 2 2 1 15

Grovedale 1 1 1 1 1 2 3 2 3 1 16

Inverleigh 1 1

Lara 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 12

Leopold 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 1 14

Modewarre 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 2 1 1 12

Newcomb 1 1 1 1 3 1 1 1 10

Newtown & Chilwell 1 1 1 1 1 6 5 6 3 1 26

North Shore 1 1

Ocean Grove 1 1 1 1 1 3 6 6 2 1 23

Portarlington 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 1 12

Queenscliff 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 1 14

South Barwon 1 1 1 1 1 3 5 4 3 1 21

St Albans 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 12

St Joseph's 1 1 1 1 1 2 3 4 3 1 18

St Mary's 1 1 1 1 1 2 4 4 4 1 20

Torquay 1 1 1 1 1 2 4 6 4 1 22

Surf Coast Suns 3 4 3 2 12

TOTAL 21 21 21 21 19 50 69 66 48 21 357

1 12 23 34 45 56 6

NETBALL TEAMS PER CLUBFOOTBALL TEAMS PER CLUB
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GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Paul Nigro Dale Kerr Blake Grant
Reserves Ross Gemmel Dylan Taylor Alex Clemens
Under 17 Rob Benney Noah Collins Jude Hardman
Under 15 Ian Benney Ike Hardman Kalani Brown
Under 13 Flynn Calder Josh Villani Jake Findlay

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Lizzi Larkin Maddy Alan Bree Caldwell
B Grade Lizzi Larkin Mimi kodhary-Jago Bella Northeast
C Grade Amy Van Berkel and Kim prince Rachel Caulfield Eliza Hawkins
D Grade Amy Van berkel and Kim Prince Emma Smith Chloe Hudson
E Grade Amy Van Berkel and Kim prince Emily Burgess Kim Prince and Gabby Shaw
19 & Under Naomi Caulfield and Monique Turner Mimi kodhary-Jago Mia Clayden
17 & Under Div 2 Monique Turner and Naomi Caulfield Charmaine Kennedy Turner Rosie Shaw
15 & Under Div 1 Ruby Dangerfield and Tilly Thompson Kate Stone Tae McGillivray
15 & Under Div 2 Ruby Dangerfield and Tilly Thompson Rori Reyntjes Jamuna Bartlett
13 & Under Div 2 Stacy Benny Scarlotte Benny Emerald Bates

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Luke Cini Cecilia Sammut Olivia Ritchie

FOOTBALL

NETBALL

FEMALE FOOTBALL

ANGLESEA

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Troy Michell/Mitchell Herbison Nathan Brown Breaden Eddy, Kyle Polley
Reserves Shane Boyington Bradley Michell, Riley Berg Bailey Graham
Under 19 Joel Kearney Luca Vella Josh Arkell
Under 17 Oscar Irwin Zeph Lamperd Jye Bartley
Under 15 Chris Cornell Jack Henderson Angus Ford
Under 13 Chris Cunningham Will McNamee Joel Bartley
Under 13 Damian Clarke Teal Lamperd Angus Mackie/ Aidan O'Mahony

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Kate Schippers Tillie Avery Hannah de Carolis
B Grade Mandy Lord Maddie Okely Molly Babb
C Grade Samantha Chapman Cat King Millie Ford
D Grade Georgia Cahill Ashleigh Williams Brooke Sebastian
E Grade Olivia Liston Kansas Graham Emily Jackson
19 & Under Hannah de Carolis Issey Armstrong Dana Ford / Ashton Dunn
17 & Under Div 1 Sarah Clarke Charlotte Middleton Lily Maclean / Anna Hewitt
17 & Under Div 2 Ebony Evans / Ashleigh Williams Natalie Villani Abby Dickson
15 & Under Div 1 Ebony Evans / Ashleigh Williams Pippi McIntyre Natalie Villani
15 & Under Div 2 Kansas Graham Isabel Gee Shani Paranavitana
15 & Under Div 3 Kimberley Thorsen Izzy Templar Billie Ballard
13 & Under Div 1 Amanda Mayor Ivy Dalley Sadie Lardner
13 & Under Div 2 Jane Price Georgia Price Isla Cameron
13 & Under Div 3 Erica Howard Skye Howard Pippa Hearps / Tyla Bennett

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Div 1 Josh Bacely Sophie Dineen Melinda Murray
Senior Div 3 Dave Schilg Georgia McFarlane Mackensy Meath
Under 18 Adam Fry Jo Sunderland Lily Harris
Under 15 Trevor Harris Claudi Collins Mako Payne

FOOTBALL

NETBALL

FEMALE FOOTBALL

BARWON HEADS

AFL BARWON 2021 ANNUAL REPORT26 27AFL BARWON 2021 ANNUAL REPORT
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GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Kane Tenace Brad Surkitt Harry Kershaw
Reserves John Chapman Danny Luizi Jack Kershaw
Under 19 Geoff Williams James Fouracre Cooper Hardy & Lachlan Martin
Under 17 Cal Whitehead Riley Meddings Evan Katos
Under 15 Cogan Matt Dowling Xavier Ivisic Harley Anderson
Under 15 Hosking Justin Healy Blake Vrtacic Fraser Stone
Under 15 Reilly Jackson Williams Oliver Yarnall Reegan Arnol
Under 13 Kelly Ben Miller & Andrew Augustine Charlie Hanegraaf John Thornton (JP)
Under 13 Bucovaz Scott Kitchin & Heath Mooney Joshua Chislett
Under 13 Lever Daniel Crouch Jess Paech
Under 13 Hutchison Leon O'Niell Liam Flanagan Josh O'Brien

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Riley Richardson Ash Salter Georgia Duncan
B Grade Riley Richardson Kayla Donnollen Renae Pickering
C Grade Heidi Shaw Ebony Lilico Lillie Bourke
D Grade Kellie Wright Jarrah Cameron Maggie Suhan
E Grade Alice Treaskis Sophie Leach Chelsea Amarant
19 & Under Renae Pickering Ebony Lilico Charlotte Ward
17 & Under Hannah Plummer Kya Werner Rebecca Edwards
17 & Under Div 2 Tess Ellard Millie Kennet Ruby Kennet
15 & Under Ash Morrison & Stacey Herbert Louise Shaw Eva Chalmers /  Emily Lawrie
15 & Under Div 2 Jade Bartz Eva Miller Charlotte England
13 & Under Christine Fagan Phoebe Walker Bailey Shaw
13 & Under Div 2 Rebecca Shanahan Teliah Smith Chloe Aspinall

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Olivia Wilson Hannah Kennedy Maddison Connally
B Grade Olivia Wilson Paige McGrath Megan Taylor 
C Grade Nicole Butler Ashleigh Hachem Jess Maddock
D Grade Kayla Griffiths Phebe Stehbens Shari Stillman
19 & Under Elise Ruggles and Daina Flynn Amaliya Taylor Maddison Connally 
17 & Under Leah Wilson Rori Addicoat Lily Mills
17 & Under Anna Foot Ella PuttyFoot Ruby Graham
15 & Under Leah Wilson Lily Mills Madison Foot
15 & Under Rebecca Blair Mia Gallop Gypsy Miller
13 & Under Claire Deretic Simone Chong Tylah Paech
13 & Under Tara Connor Heidi Connor Grace Chapman

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Tim McGrath Emily Ramsay Stephanie Abfalter
Senior David Vanderpol Courtney Gould Ashlee Bensted
Under 18 Graeme Arnold Matilda Puckett Poppy Schapp
Under 15 Trent Mellington & Noel Taylor Tamika Levy Amber Towart

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Seniors Stuart Craven Tanacha Saunders Steph Carroll

FOOTBALL

NETBALL

NETBALL

FEMALE FOOTBALL

FEMALE FOOTBALL

DRYSDALE
FOOTBALL
*information not available prior to production

GEELONG AMATEUR
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GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Seniors Chris Hickey Josh Finch Callan Farrell & Jeremy Ollis
Reserves Bennett Thompson Troy Anderson Leigh Anderson
U19 Tom Arnold Mitch Keane (QC) Tom Dickinson (M)
U17 Mick Fitzgerald Patrick Fitzgerald Thomas Bartlett

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Seniors Jye Walker Brenton Rees Corey Ogle
Reserves Nathan Dillon Mason Andrews Mikali Harrison 
Under 15’s Garth Ballentine Reece Smiljanic Quaid Durrant
Under 13’s Adam Bell Ben Miles Micah Shawcross and Ben Klein

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Kathryn Vickers Kathryn Vickers Monique Pedretti, Ruby Bowers
B Grade Bryce Flannery Monique Sefton & Briely Wight Hettie Day
C Grade Lisa Hickey Bella Robinson Amy Hallyburton
D Grade Alice Pratt Sarah Spokes Jess Carpenter
E Grade Maddi Quilliam Laura Ingleton Olivia Pecchiaria
19 & Under Tania Redpath Phoebe Fitzgerald Grace Fraser
17 & Under Div 2 Maddie Riddle Clodagh Newton Ellie McKim
15 & Under Div 2 Amy Hallyburton & Zoe Evens, Belle Fitzgerald Kalarni Boddington Ava Shaw
13 & Under Div 2 Daniel Black Hayley Toull Amali Bethune

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Claire McFadyen & Holly Robinson (Asst Coach) Laney McFadyen And Carly Sanders Britt Collier
B Grade Claire McFadyen & Holly Robinson (Asst Coach) Elliana Van Galen Britt Collier
C Grade Sophie Vernon & Elysha Fox (Asst Coach) Chelsea Mits Trish Harris
D Grade Sophie Vernon & Elysha Fox (Asst Coach) Dakota Leitch Jessica Halliday
U19s Claire McFadyen Laney Mcfadyen Veronica Borsi
Under 17’S Casey McFadyen And Emily Wagener Taylah Drake Amelia Cleasby
Under 13’S Shania Richie Cleo Mahoney Lauren Kettner

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Under 15 Girls mix
with St Albans

Chantelle Harrington (Newcomb) and 
Ben Crothers (St Albans) Dakota Harrington (Newcomb) Phoebe Cobb (St Albans)

FOOTBALL

NETBALL

NETBALL

FEMALE FOOTBALL

NEWCOMB
FOOTBALL

MODEWARRE
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GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Peter O'Connor Will Foott Lachlan Hart
Reserves Gary English Nathan Smith Francis Rigby
Under 17 Brayden O'Hanlon Blaide Dowie Jacob Hodgson
Under 15 James Harvey & Darryn Sedgmen Broden Bond Ethan Burnett
Under 13 David Burke Harper Fawcett Zak Payne
Under 13 Scott McDonald Charlie Sambucco Miles Harvey

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Pete Davey Glenn Campbell Joe McDonald
Reserves Cheyne Kelly Nick Chapman Tom Hobbs
Under 19 Corey Healy Bryce Dunell Kirby Reilly
Under 17 Pete Freeman Jet Kneebone Caleb Belcher
Under 17 David Street Jobe Lange Lachie Allan
Under 15 Wayne Walsh Sonni Walter Billy Hayward
Under 15 Will Cunningham Fraser Stow
Under 15 Max McGuane Jem Denning / Angus O'Keefe

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Gary Benjamin Gemma Stavenuiter & Sarah Perrott Morgan Van Leerdam
B Grade Gary Benjamin Meg Evendon Serah Scutchings
C Grade Denise Allaalatoa Erin Gillett Jayde Gillett
D Grade Emily Hoare Stacey McPherson Ebony Labett
E Grade Megan Hillier No team
19 & Under Brittany O'Regan Talei Nawai Devon Wicks
17 & Under Barbara Allaalatoa Jamison Camilleri Emma Chamberlain
17 & Under Div 2 Brittany O'Regan Elizabeth Ryan Marnea Tot
15 & Under Emily Hoare Juliet Evans Talia Devlin
15 & Under Div 2 Megan Hillier Pippa Scutchings Leah McPherson
13 & Under Denise Allaalatoa Analena Hillier Phoebe Zahl
13 & Under Div 2 Mim Hillier Elison Jolly Chloe King

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Nikki Cooke Kelsey Ollis Maddy White
B Grade Kelsey Ollis Nikki Cooke Kim Hart
C Grade Candice Parker and Rebecca O'Neill Gemma Bell Meagan Bothe
D Grade Paual Birch and Lorraine Birch Kellie Morrish Michaela Giblin
E Grade Heidi Bennett Terri-Anne Finch Isabel Wilkins
17&U Div 1 Shelby Hackett Lexie Annand Amelia Cunningham
17&U Div 2 Maureen Stanic Milla Bell Anika Bult & Laura Maertzdorf
15&U Div 1 Taryn Laverty Lucy Sampson Sofia Dickeson
15&U Div 2 Lorraine Birch Grace Boland Molly McLean
15/U Blue Kylie Collett Sofia Martino Georgie Collett
15/U Pink Kathryn Lyons Sienna White Alex Light & Brianna Brew
15/U Purple Katrina Mahar Ella Zaicz Olivia Grogan & Bella Wearmouth
15/U Green Aaron Donaldson Charlie Di Pasquale Lola Pink
13/U 1’s Rylee Finlay & Famie Needham Ella Brown Adele Mills
13/U 2’s Remi Bennett & Tony Potter  Billie Cook-Slevin & Abhi Sanjeev Holly Britt
13/U Blue Pete Hart Ruby Hepburn Ruby Kempton
13/U Pink Catherine Sampson Alice Sampson Airlie Bennett
13/U Purple Cate Simpson Maci Dean Reagan McKenzie
13/U Green Renee Forward Caitlin Parker Lara Forward

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Under 15 Red Mark Durbridge Stephanie O'Kane Emily Soppitt / Kate O'Brien
Under 15 White Cori Andrews Grace McLean Tannah Andrews

FOOTBALL

NETBALL

NETBALL

FEMALE FOOTBALL

FOOTBALL

33AFL BARWON 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

PORTARLINGTONOCEAN GROVE

AFL BARWON 2021 ANNUAL REPORT32



35AFL BARWON 2021 ANNUAL REPORTAFL BARWON 2021 ANNUAL REPORT34

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Steven Clark Che Durran Luke Di Lizio
Reserves Kent Hannam Dylan Whitley Jacob Callahan
Under 19 Tom Arnold Mitchell Keane Cade Knight
Under 17 Jake Hedley Sol Bowtell Nat Stephens
Under 15 Brendan Monahan Tyler Monahan Jordan Monahan
Under 13 Damian Waight Banjo Briesch Lenny Ireland

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Bridgitte Burns Kaitlin Gladman Julia Mitchell
B Grade Bridgitte Burns Jessica Cox Amelia Bakker
C Grade Carly Headlam Eloise Fleming Emma Butler
D Grade Samantha Sheahan Kirrily Sager Samantha Sheahan
E Grade Shae Campbell/Mel Dick Eliza Francis and Tiffany Stephens
19 & Under Courtney Colston Kaitlin Gladman Mia Stephens
17 & Under Div 1 Josie Maher Amelia Bakker Matilda Kidd
17 & Under Div 2 Lauren Saunders Claire Martin Chloe Visser and Eve Dalton
15 & Under Div 1 Hannah Stephens/Jess Anderson Eden Henderson-Craig Matilda Andrews
15 & Under Div 2 Sarah Martin/Larissa Dixon Lucy Briton Laura Hall
13 & Under Div 1 Meagan Canaway Alice Coffey Sienna Hocking and Scarlett Birrell
13 & Under Div 2 Emily Limb Eloise Limb Eva Botsios and Gemma Hocking

NETBALL

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Dom Gleeson Callum Currie James Darke
Reserves Stuart Hill Connor Williamson Hugh Darke
Under 19 Adam Bird Xavier Huxtable Oliver Poon
Under 17 - Div 1 Clay Page/Brad Edwards Patrick Hughes Thomas Burke
Under 17 - Div 2 Dale Wright Taj Cartwright Lawson Dale
Under 17 - Div 3 Fraser Rudland Charlie Reid Sam Beddome
Under 15 - Div 1 Glenn Mifsud Angus Hanley Oliver Maddalena
Under 15 - Div 3 Danny Brennan Odin Dunn Harry Dower
Under 15 - Div 5 Dave Farrelly Flynn Eastmure Mitchell Penrice
Under 15 - Div 5 Scot Cooke/Ted Pitcher Geordie Pitcher Ryder Murphy
Under 13 - Div 1 Luke Collins Alex Baulch Charlie Gray
Under 13 - Div 3 Cameron Sheppard Kyan Walters Connor Boswell
Under 13 - Div 4 Scott Dower Ari Beel Hudson Brett
Under 13 - Div 5 Danny Ashleigh Ryder Grogan Billy Read
Under 13 - Div 6 Phil Wrochna Xavier Gaulke Isaac Ashely

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Courtney Cuolahan Jessica Standfield Rhian Moresi
B Grade Courtney Cuolahan Georgia Downward Claudia Masek
C Grade Ashley Card & Teegan Powell Rebecca Cottrell Lauren Cameron
D Grade Rachel Baulch Tess Bramham Rachel Baulch
E Grade Katherine Taylor Cassie Altimari Claire Osborn
19 & Under Maddy Martin Jordyn Brown Tess Maher
17 & Under Div 1 Chelsea Bryans Leila Owens Nerys Kirk & Jade Brinsdon
17 & Under Div 2 Amy McElgunn Ally Gray Sophie Potter
17 & Under Div 3 Jodie Diamond and Kylie O'Toole Mya Diamond Lila Richard
17 & Under Div 4 Vaughn McCarthy Charlotte Maw Georgia Smith
15 & Under Div 1 Jessica Standfield Leni Gilbert & Lani Dukker Bella O'Dwyer
15 & Under Div 2 Meagan Mifsud Holly Bates Sian Hughes
15 & Under Div 3 Dianne Ellis Stella Draper Coby Stott & Honey Maui
15 & Under Div 3 Celia Bolton Tahli Gavin Grace Maw & Harper Bolton
15 & Under Div 4 Taylah Buttigieg Stella Huxtable Phoebe Steel
15 & Under Div 5 Edwina Wilkens Madi Jacobs Mia Bartolo
13 & Under Div 1 Jo Carson Coco Hayes Tara Asbell
13 & Under Div 2 Nicole Hayes Luella White Amelia Gibson
13 & Under Div 4 Tara Hewett Lily Franklin Sophie Monaghan 
13 & Under Div 5 Kirsten Looker Gisele Tieppo Remi Turner & Violet Duncan

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Lisa Robinson/Josie Smith Sophie O'Meara Jayde Maney
Under 18 Steve Currie Molly Lesosky Hay Leila Owens
Under 15 - Div 1 Clare Murphy/Brad Skerke Stella Huxtable Juliet Muscroft
Under 15 - Div 2 Justin Calvert Isla Huppatz Milla Wall

FOOTBALL

NETBALL

FEMALE FOOTBALL

TORQUAY
FOOTBALL

AFL BARWON 2021 ANNUAL REPORT34

QUEENSCLIFF



37AFL BARWON 2021 ANNUAL REPORTAFL BARWON 2021 ANNUAL REPORT36

FOLL

I/C

HF

C

HB

B

F

Cam O’Leary
Barwon Heads

Dale Kerr
Angelsea

Che Durran
Queenscliff

James Paterson
Ocean Grove

Cam Marchbank
Ocean Grove

Darby Schilder
Modewarre

Nathan Brown
Barwon Heads

Sam Wormald
Torquay

Will Jacobs
Barwon Heads

James Darke
Torquay

Paul McMahon
Torquay

Brenton Rees (C)
Newcomb

Tom Hornsey
Modewarre

Lucas Anderson
Torquay

Dale Carson
Anglesea

Ben McNamara
Torquay

Brad Surkitt
Geelong Amateur

Callum Currie
Torquay

Kobe Annand
Ocean Grove

Ashley Caldwell
Anglesea

James Breust
Drysdale

Lauchlan Dalgleish
Drysdale

Adam Boshevski
Modewarre

Dow BFNL Football Coaches
Team of the year

COACH

K-Rock GFNL Football Coaches 
Team of the Year

Dom Gleeson
Torquay

FOLL

I/C

HF

C

HB

B

F

Lachlan Patten (C)
Bell Park

Cam Tudor
St Joseph’s

David Handley
Geelong West Giants

Luke Hillman
Colac

Jack Blood
St Mary’s

Adam Garner
Colac

Jack Drive
South Barwon

Liam McCarthy
Colac

Jordan Keras
St Joseph’s

Mitch Day
Lara

Harry Benson
St Mary’s

 Josh Jaska
St Mary’s

Tom Gillett
Grovedale

Daniel Weig
Lara

Jack Melica
Colac

Nick Dixon
North Shore

Jonathan Simpkin
Colac

Trent West
Leopold

Ryan Abbott
Grovedale

Andrew Boseley
South Barwon

Ben Lloyd
Bell Park

Stephen Bensted
Bell Park

CO COACHES
Travis Robertson and Glenn Keast

St Mary’s
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Dow BFNL NEtball Coaches
Team of the year

BLOOD TOYOTA GFNL Football 
Coaches Team of the Year

Bridget Aughton
Torquay

Victoria Honner
St Joseph’s

Ashlea Salter
Geelong Amateur

Vanessa Augustini
Newtown & Chilwell

Ruby Watson
Geelong Amateur

Ellen Doyle
South Barwon

Kelsey Ollis
Ocean Grove

Brooke Allan
Colac

Tillie Avery
Barwon Heads

Jessica Leader
Geelong West Giants

Rebecca O’Neill
Ocean Grove

Jane Cook
St Albans

Jessica Standfield
Torquay

Melissa Oloamanu
Newtown & Chilwell

Madeline Martin
Torquay

Emily Post
St Joseph’s

Madeline White
Ocean Grove

Julia Woolley
Newtown & Chilwell

Mia Fallon
Geelong Amateur

Kaitlyn Sheringham
Bell Park

COACH:  Riley Richardson  Geelong Amateurs

COACH:   Jason Woolley Newtown & Chilwell

DEFENDERS

DEFENDERS

MID COURT

MID COURT

GOALERS

GOALERS

FOLL

I/C

HF

C

HB

B

F

Charlotte Simpson
St Joseph’s

Cheryl DeGroot
Geelong Amateur

Sophie O’Dea
Geelong West Giants

Keeley Hardingham
Colac Imperials

Kaitlyn Haustorfer	
Lara

Melissa Egan
Drysdale

Abby Favell
Newtown & Chilwell

Sophie Dinneen
Barwon Heads

Isabella Hill
Grovedale

Bianca Cheever
St Mary’s

Sarah Perrott
Newtown & Chilwell

Maggie Caudullo
South Barwon

Rhianna Arnold
Geelong Amateur

Natalie French
Grovedale

Abbey Chapman
Geelong West Giants

Temikka Beeston
North Geelong

Emily Ramsay
Geelong Amateur

Stephanie Abfalter
Geelong Amateur

Cecilia Sammut
Anglesea

Aliesha McLean
North Geelong

Tahley Houghton
St Mary’s

Caitlin Pickett
Drysdale

EPWORTH SENIOR FEMALE
Team of the year

COACH
Tim McGrath

Geelong Amateurs
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GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Seniors Rowan McSparron Zac Zydbel Leigh Gorwell
Reserves Colin Hammond Tom Rieniets Travis Woodmason
U19s Ben Allan Aaron Hawker Tom Swayn
U17 Todd Jamieson Max Buchanan Henry Melville
U15 Abba Melville Jacob Frampton Riley Westlake
U13 Tyson Hay Archie Millar Xav Cooknell

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Seniors Shane Jack Ben Lloyd Lachlan Patton
Reserves Josh Lithgow and Brad Lynch Nicholas Talarico Darcy McDowell and Jacob Talbot
U19 Shane Manning Matthew Jelenic

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Stephen Lawrence Brooke Allan Kelsey Lang
B Grade Sara Hay/Hope Carmody Monika Hammond Maddy Allan
C Grade Kelsey Jeffreys/Gabi Rieniets Sara Hay Jo Isaac
D Grade Gabby Finn Emma Storer Sam Eyers
U19s Sophie Arnold/Eliza Cahill Ruby Kerr Layla Holt
U17 Div 1 Stacey McCarthy Chloe Hay and Ava Cuolahan Lulu Riches
U17 Div 2 Sara Morrissy Mia Parkhouse Indy Holland
U15 Div 1 Chloe Lang & Kate Lang Abby Hay Lily Gibson
U15 Div 2 Gabby Finn Charlie Fraser and Bella Melville Grace Harrington
U13 Div 1 Mon Hammond & Chloe Hay Kiara Foster Eliza Speirs
U13 Div 2 Lily Gibson and Abby Hay Millie Sueren Emilie Daffy

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Damian Stephenson Kaitlyn Sheringham Phoebe Wilson
B Grade Damian Stephenson Emma Hawker Alex Sheridan/Murphy Floyd
C Grade Jillian Floyd Jane Muhor Bronte Burke
D Grade Jillian Floyd Abbey Dunn Marissa Stepanic
E Grade Carmen Williams Clare Hodgson Elleanor McWhae
19 & Under Ebony Coppock Sara Walsh Ella Lauder/Lucy Williams
17 & Under Div 1 Tayla Falconer Makeely Rogers Bella Marles
17 & Under Div 2 Ella Wasik & Sarah Stuart Charlotte Stacey Amelia Archer-Logo
15 & Under Div 1 Carla O'Brien Ella Johnson Hannah Cohen
15 & Under Div 2 Kloe Walton & Bridget Mapleson Jemima Toulas Sienna McInness
15 & Under Div 3 Carmen Williams Chelsea Orrock/Sienna Talbot Mikayla Marsden
13 & Under Div 1 Maggie Williams & Alice Williams Matilda Toulas Lily McDonald
13 & Under Div 2 Lucy Williams & Amelia Dendryver Isabella Talbot Layla Retallick

FOOTBALL

NETBALL
NETBALL

COLACBELL PARK
FOOTBALL
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GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Daniel Fraser Matt Harvey Ryan Abbott
Reserves Brad Hauenstein Andrew French Jacob Lovegrove
Under 19 Greg Van Hees James Pullen Sam Walker
Under 17 Steve Topouzakis Harry Hauenstein William Skene
Under 17 Peter Wallace Oliver Bekker Ethan Mohr
Under 15 Paul Waldron Giorgio Maikantis Ryan Bourke
Under 15 Des Kelly Ryan Collins Ethan Butcher
Under 13 William Skene Jordan Smith Coby Smith

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Greg Mellor David Handley Emmanuel Ajang
Reserves Chris Wiedmann Tannar Stone Grady Slocombe
Under 17 Div 1 Riley Moore & Gareth Drennan Daniel Cole Thomas Major
Under 17 Div 3 Craig Sodomaco Jayden Spiteri Flynn Calnon
Under 15 Sam Kelly & Fin Florence Jesse Mellor Nicholas Preiato
Under 13 Div 2 Kev Dans & Rohan Cameron Luca Losinno & Sage Losinno Bodhi Black
Under 13 Div 7 Kev Dans & Rohan Cameron Zac Miller Louis Gumina

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Bruce Waldron Bonnie Coburn Mary waldron
B Grade Bruce Waldron Rhiannon Williams Maddison Hickey
C Grade Bonnie Coburn Taylar Borg Jacinta Hauenstein
D Grade Katie Hughes Molly Varcoe Giaan Englezos and Enza Cassetta
E Grade Rachael Drayton Rachael Drayton Kelly McCarthy
19 & Under Jacinta Hauenstein and Sophie Baker Lily Schmidt Zoe Hauenstein
17 & Under Div 1 Mary waldron Kaylah Thorrowgood Annie Wills
17 & Under Div 2 Rhiannon Williams Indie Joseph Jazmyn Hamilton
17 & Under Div 3 Eva Korovulavula Ebony Paull Carli McCrohan
15 & Under Div 1 Taylar Borg Olivia Pye Sophie Hill
15 & Under Div 2 May White and Zoe Hauenstein Ruby McCarthy Bridgette Allan
13 & Under Div 1 Ellie Murrant And Annie Wills Mila Drayton Tallulah Dunn
13 & Under Div 2 Tim Fryer Mia Ford Lylah Rickard
13 & Under Div 3 Caitlin Dawber Ruby Edwards Makenzie Meehan

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Jill Leader Jess Leader Ebony Rolph
B Grade Rachel Leader Hannah Buchanan Rachel Palmer-Brennan
C Grade Brett Matthews Abbey Chapman Kathryn Eastman
D Grade Jess Leader Elisha Sachetta Dakota Reid
E Grade Holly Fenton / Bronte Weigl Hayley Fowler Hannah Buckle
19 & Under Kirsty Russell Georgia Whiting Camryn Howell
17 & Under Libby Brecevic Tori Smith Darcie Jones/Lauren Walder
15 & Under Maddie Muir Charli Hoey Keira Loney
15 & Under Hannah Buckle Zoe Breuer Ashmeet Narula
13 & Under Jill Leader Piper Calnon Sahirah Smith
13 & Under Courtney Halgren Sienna Bainbridge Niamh Drennan / Sienna Kestles

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Tom Worpel Isabella Hill Natalie French
Under 18 Matthew Pearce Abbey Pearce Chloe Adams
Under 15 Sam Kerr Shyla McKnight Catherine Gandolfo

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior - Div 1 Ben Rowe Sophie O'Dea Teagan Tatlock
Senior - Div 2 Paul Robinson Sarah Anderson Katelyn Murphy
Under 18 Josh Todd Paris Stokes Amber Kelly
Under 15 Sarah Chapman Kirra Robinson Kiara Woods

FOOTBALL

NETBALLNETBALL

FEMALE FOOTBALL
FEMALE FOOTBALL

GROVEDALEGEELONG WEST GIANTS
FOOTBALL

AFL BARWON 2021 ANNUAL REPORT42
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GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Jason Tom Tom Gordon Marcus Thompson
Reserves Craig Johnson Kyle Bumpstead Dylan O'Brien
Under 19 Mark Power/Harry James Cody Chircop Darcy Radford
Under 17 Simon Nelis Rory Desnoy Anthony Tanner
Under 15 Div 1 Mark Stanesby Will Smith Darcy Brislane
Under 15 Div 2 Tim Secombe Riley Blaney-Murphy Jacob Busuttil & Jacob Irwin
Under 13 Div 1 Leigh Datson Haydan Cooper Connor Montgomery
Under 13 Div 2 Dale Morrison Declan Hamann Tyler Morris

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Kirsty Fagan Ebony Cole Bridgette Furphy & Darcy Wlson
B Grade Prue Laws Zoe Bussell Nicole Maxton
C Grade Mel Tomlins Courtney Elliot Anna Maher
D Grade Jana McElhiney Emily Wilson Brittany Elliott
E Grade Anna Maher/ Candice Bull Ashleigh Coghlan Jess Aston
19 & Under Emily Wolfenden Carey Jamie Dumbell Charlotte Hayden
17 & Under 1 Bridgette Murray Charlotte Murray & Millie Holland Lily Stanesby
17 & Under MacKenna Jenkins Bonnie Hockley Chloe Ryan
15 & Under 1 Sarah Jeffreys Chloe Hobbs Lucy Mawson
15 & Under Chelsea Taylor Hewson Sienna Nesbet Georgina Vahl-Meyer
13 & Under 1 Chelsea Morrissy Emily Brislane Madison Burns
13 & Under Nat Davies/Cindy Cook Charlie Street Lucy Jovanovic

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Under 15 Reese McIlvena Olivia Lane Madison Maselli

FOOTBALL

NETBALL

FEMALE FOOTBALL

LEOPOLDLARA
*information not available prior to production
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GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Darren Winter / Nick Dixon Noah Lever Jason Davenport
Reserves Bruce Doherty Tim Ivermee Bailey Shelley
Under 19 Brad McDougall / Aaron Fry Jordan Nolan Pat McNamara
Under 13 Nick Stonehouse Will Nichols Noah Dewsbury

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Under 17A Harrington Warren Bennett Thomas Anastasopoulos Casey Morrissy
Under 15A Morrissy David Wojcinski Noah Tullio Jett Modolo
Under 15B Hall Jack Brogden Jackson Stephenson Luke Norsworthy
Under 13A Alford Scott Lindsay Reuben Long Charlie Bove
Under 13B Harris Aaron Keating Angus Hecht Jaryd Antonenko
Under 13C Hyland Dan Salter Albert Cummins Orlando Oliver GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP

E Grade Jorja Hogarty Sarah Purcell Sheree Smith

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Jason Woolley Julia Woolley Vanessa Augustini
B Grade Jason Woolley Alex Booker Ariana Luamanu
C Grade Kyle "Bav" Dohnt Jessie Harcombe Kayla Anderson-Baker
D Grade Emma Bright Georgina Barclay Alana Hellmann
E Grade Kirsten Strammachia Tegan Vaotangi Jessica Kelly
19 & Under Kyle "Bav" Dohnt Stella Talbot Ruby Downes
17 & U Div 1 Julia Woolley Daisy Page Mimi Lockwood/Milla Lappin/Sienna Bruhn
17 & U Div 2 Lee Doherty Stella Mackay Piper Mensch
17 & U Div 3 (Rau) Georgie Barclay/Georgia Murdoch Mia Eastman Annabelle Batty
15 & U Div 1 Julia Woolley Macey Bowie Zainab Balogun
15 & U Div 2 Kyle "Bav" Dohnt Eliza Hannagan Georgia Caracella
15 & U Div 3 (Jeanes) Indi Hart Phoebe Knight Sophie Muhor/Chloe O'Brien
15 & U Div 3 (Higgins) Justin Hillier Olivia Atkins Jessica Hille
15 & U Div 4 (Lowe) Elise Caldwell Annabel Ward/Ally Lappin Brooke Ives
15 & U Div 5 (McMahon) Justin Hillier Jada Borys Dana Mackay
13 & U Div 1 Kirsten Strammachia Ayisha Balogun Imogen Hall
13 & U Div 2 Hannah Branson/Grace Ingwerson/Lulu Higgins Charlotte Wardle Maggie Kennedy
13 & U Div 3 (Woolley) Cassidy Moore Isabelle Desmonde Sophie O'Brien
13 & U Div 3 (Nutt) Georgia Norris/Annabel Parish Ava McLaren-Williams Lucinda Colquhoun
13 & U Div 4 (O'Dwyer) Holly Barker/Maeve Fraser Jada Morrissy Eva Borys

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Girls 15s Higgins Peter McCann Sara Howley Macey Farvis
Girls 15s Taylor Cam Thiele Mekah Morrissy Ebony McLean
Girls 12s Mithen Tamara Smith Freya Howley Annabelle Verfurth

FOOTBALL

NETBALL

NETBALL

FEMALE FOOTBALL

NORTH SHORENEWTOWN & CHILWELL
FOOTBALL
*information not available for Seniors, Reserves & Under 19’s prior to production
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GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior 

Ben Patrick

"Dylan Pettingill 
Lachie Wallace 
Jacob Russell 
Andy Higgins"

N/A

Reserves Adam Marsland Jake Spalding Tom Caudullo
Under 19 Craig Wolfenden Ben Wolfenden Jack Gibson
Under 17 Danny Wilson Jordy Lyons Dylan Dwyer
Under 15 Sean Thomas Sammy Lyons Bailey Thomas
Under 13 Brad Sinkinson Oscar Lyons Allistair Morell

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior David Farrell Luke Davis Doyle Madigan
Reserves Andrew Fraser Harry Cashin Ryan Bell
Under 19 Matthew Murnane Lewie Campbell Zac Wills
U17 Div 2 Matt Morrissy Henry Verschuren Tom Peirce
U15 Div 2 Rob Crawford Xavier Montgomery Ryder Roberts
U15 Div 3 Darren Meadows Damien Hewson Charlie Meadows
U15 Div 6 Dale Ringin Mitchell Ringin NA
U13 Div 1 James O'Connor Kye Perrett Xavier Lalic
U13 Div 3 Travis Agg Ryder Scott Jackson Kelley
U13 Div 6 Ryan Mackay Sonny Walsh Cillian O'Brien

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Josh Smith Jane Cook Madelyn Gray
B Grade Josh Smith Nikita Handley Analea Mckee 
C Grade Rebecca Henriksen Georgia Sheridan Montanna Mair
D Grade Lisa Thomas Morgan Boseley & Zoe Quick Kristen Clarke
E Grade Marcelle Nowell Brodie Marsland Sharon Craig & Jodie Scarlett
19 & Under Zoe Quick & Georgia Sheridan Laura Evans Alex Butcher
17 & Under Rebecca Henriksen Kasey Randall Gracie Navarro & Amber Kelly
15 & Under Rebecca Henriksen Milly Andrews Ruby Wilson
15 & Under Div 2 Makenzie Clift Darcy Randall Isabel Henrikson & Mia Henriksen
13 & Under Rebecca Henriksen Isabel Henriksen Darcy Randall
13 & Under Div 2 Ruby Wilson & Lucille Graham Lily Langsworth Maddy Dunn

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Jorden Nichols Ellen Doyle Maddison McKiernan
B Grade Jorden Nichols Jenna Boseley Jordee Nichols
C Grade Alannah Penny/ Jenna Boseley Sachi-Mae Demko & Tyler Lewis Ebony Stacey
D Grade Alannah Penny/ Jenna Boseley Eliza Hager Emily Keown
E Grade Ali Gerischer Maddison White Hannah Barton
19 & Under Jessica Johns Perri McFarlane Maddison White
17 & Under Div 1 Ellen Doyle Charlotte Morey Lucy Camm
17 & Under Div 2 Jessica Johns Caitlin Hamling Olivia Smith
17 & Under Div 3 Maddison McKiernan Leah Felder Olivia Smith
15 & Under Div 1 Tyra Fallon Bronte Leishman Taylah Richards
15 & Under Div 2 Steph Miles Tayla Button Tayla Hamling
15 & Under Div 3 Morgan Doyle Zoe Russell Lucy Russell
15 & Under Div 6 Morgan Doyle Bridgette Witnish Elle Handley
13 & Under Div 1 Tyra Fallon Leni Hepburn Sophie Nolan
13 & Under Div 2 Steph Miles Emily McCormick Mietta Simpkin
13 & Under Div 3 Michelle Sherman Lily Sherman Willow McInnes Willow McInnes
13 & Under Div 4 Olivia Mawson Ella Campbell    Tahlia Stevens Olivia Kelson
13 & Under Div 6 Ella Richardson/Eliza Ainsworth Elly Wilde Ella Gretgrix

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Kirby Bourke Emily Gibson Mary Greed
Under 18 Kirby Bourke Jaime Castledine Coco Sammut
Under 15 Ben Crothers/Chantelle Harrington Dakota Harrington Pheobe Cobb

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Mark Wilson Maggie Caudullo Daisy Wilson
Under 18 Paul Coleman Daisy Wilson Tamara Sferco
Under 15 David Laherty/Warren Cook Lucy Maruschuk Elara Dillon

FOOTBALL

NETBALLNETBALL

FEMALE FOOTBALL
FEMALE FOOTBALL

ST ALBANSSOUTH BARWON
FOOTBALL
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GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Kirsten Hood Victoria Honner Emily Post
B Grade Kirsten Hood Keely Mullen Sarah Cleaver/Meg Threlfall
C Grade Laura Bell Jessica Hardiman Sarah Hungerford
D Grade Caroline Morgan Caitlyn Rundle Caroline Morgan
E Grade Sandi-Lea Dimasi Zoe Smith Annie Pettit
19 & Under Elizabeth Bartram Kasey Pritchard Rosie Smith
17 & Under Div 1 Keely Mullen/Sarah Clever Emily Green Tess De Grandi
17 & Under Div 2 Meg Threlfall/ Emily Post Sophie Ford Ally Sears
17 & Under Div 3 Fiona McCoy Janelle Moss Geogina Corray
15 & Under Div 1 Emily Post Amy Ingles Sarah Ford
15 & Under Div 2 Shannyn Leach Olivia Clark Montana Darmanin
15 & Under Div 3 Rebecca Hardy Emily Issell Miah Miles
15 & Under Div 4 Sophie Scott/Juliette Summerhayes Lucy Arblaster Jasper Little
13 & Under Div 1 Meg Threlfall Indi Madden Charlotte Baxter
13 & Under Div 2 Jennah Sobevski Arabella Taylor Chiara Hooley
13 & Under Div 3 Milly Northey/Tess De Grandi/ Maeve Boland Charli Gleeson Avah Fursland

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Paul Carson / Gary Hocking 

Jackson Davis / Peter Street Henry Walsh Cameron Tudor

Reserves Daniel Holroyd Jarrad Jans Lachlan Devine / Luke Mc Coy 
Under 19 A Chris Browne Ben Clarke Herschelle Carr
Under 19 B Robbie Law Luke Housego Dylan Blight 
Under 17 (Podbury) Div 1 Matt Kershaw Ryan Connolly Felix Henderson- Burch & Malachi White
Under 17 (Hill) Div 4 Richard Allen Matthew Purnell Toby Osburn
Under 15 (Black) Div 1 Darren Morrison Angus Morrison Cooper Ward-Devlyn
Under 15 (Red) Div 1 Jamie Taylor Henry Symes Tosh Lennon
Under 15 (Yellow) Div Richard Allen *Combined team and a Sth Barwon play won B&F Jett Kelly
Under 13 (Black) Div 1 Jai Smith Archer Chamberlain Jaxson Cooney
Under 13 (Red) Div 4 Mark Henry Tai Moorfoot James Stojanovski
Under 13 (Yellow) Div 5 Mark Whelan  Nick Spanninga Tyler Zyppel
Under 13 (White) Div 8 Jude Henderson Nate Patrick Billy Smith

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Chris Hickey Kylie West Jasmine Coleman
Under 18 Jono Bryant Katie Martin Tess De Grandi
Under 15 Daniel Van Den Ham Georgia Tyrrell Chloe Bryant
Under 12 Eliza Kol NA NA

FOOTBALL

NETBALL

FEMALE FOOTBALL

ST MARY’SST JOSEPH’S
*information not available prior to production
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GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Under 15 Sean Cotter Oskar Abbott James Prosser
Under 13 - DEADLY James Falconer Oscar Fisher Ryder Warry
Under 13 - LIGHTNING Paul O'Sullivan, Chris Rashleigh Lachlan Thomas Josh Hannah
Under 13 - FLYERS Scott Prosser Zachary Price Harrison McHale, Jai Wilson

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Jeff Czajkowski Temikka Beeston Madeline Chandler

FOOTBALL

FEMALE FOOTBALL

NORTH GEELONG

SURFCOAST SUNS

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Under 17 - WINKI Kylie Roe Lauren Jakobi Jorje Wheaton
Under 17 - COSY Fleur Batties Sophie Stevenson Abbey Brown
Under 15 - JAROSITE Stacey Ryan Grace Reid Lyla Shorter
Under 15 - BIRDROCK Melanie Maycock, Jacinta Burke Emersyn Barry Yasmin Diamond
Under 15 - URQUHARTS Elaine Van Der Meer Shinay Grobler, Bella Williams Nicola Van Der Meer
Under 13 - WHITES Megan Aitkinson Holly Carnovale Ruby Roe, Ashtyn Atkinson
Under 13 - DANGER Mel Bragge Mackinley Bragge Anja Hennig, Charlotte Thomas
Under 13 - ROADKNIGHT Janelle DeSilva Akasha Young Lucia Garrard
Under 13 JUC Melanie Thomas Willow Hoyne Erin Hardiman
Under 11 - ZEALLY Korina Noble Milla Russell Georgie Vague
Under 11 - ADDIS Kelly Furniss Emma Henderson Grace Palmer
Under 11 - BELLS Faye Ferdinands Lily Robinson Belle Ferdinands

NETBALL

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Under 17 Zac Watson Jesse Stapleton Solomon Murphy
Under 15 Scott Ferguson and Anthony Johnstone Jude Payne Mason Williams
Under 13 Sean O'Leary Austin Williams Tresol Simba

Annakie/Little River Junior Football

Thomson Junior Football

INVERLEIGH Junior Football

BELLPOST HILL Junior Football

BELMONT LIONS Junior Football

EAST GEELONG Junior Football

ARMSTRONG CREEK Junior Football

BANNOCKBURN Junior Football

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Under 13s Calvin Keating

*Information not available prior to publicatin
Under 15s Jaroslav Ptacek

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Under 15 Ty Willis Aime Nshimiyimana  Mikey Tsaikos

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Under 15 Matt Harvey Cameron Sewell Liam Warnock
Under 13 Jarrad Bourke Dan Bilinski Tom Stuchbery 

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Under 15 Vittorio Glencross Buckley Weber Ben Glencross, Jadyn Quarrel and Ryan Sacco
Under 13 Adam Houghton Jackson Smith Adam Jervies

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Under 19 Chris Doak Brock Mahoney Josh Allen

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Under 13s Mark James *Information not available prior to publicatin

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Under 19 Zac Hickleton 

*Information not available prior to publicatin
Under 17 Paul Rossiter
Under 15 Paul Brock
Under 15 Dan Gibbs
Under 13 Scott Moreland

JUNIOR FOOTBALL
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GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Joe Dare Lochie Rosevear Pat Seal
Reserves Luke McLennan James Mulheron Liam Williamson, Kade Parker, Eamon Spence
Under 18 Justin McGuane Micah Robb Jensen Monaghan
Under 14.5 Reegan Monaghan Will Budge Luke Everett

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Dion Lawson & Damien Zaparenkov Bradley King Matthew Caris
Reserves Harley Soall Tom Randone Halrey Soall
Under 18 Jay Diffey Isaac Noseda Zachary Clissold
Under 14.5 Tyson Holt Tamar Holt Jappe Murray McAlester

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Morgan Eldridge & Lily Eldridge Ebony Miraglia Chelsea Hillman
B Grade Leah Barrow Angela Hogben Sarah Newton
C Grade Sarah Mulgrew Sufi Licayan Bella O'Dowd
17 & Under Div 1 Angela Hogben Savannah Jenkin Darcy Barrow
15 & Under Div 1 Nelly Ganim-Heath Tahlia Daniels Kate Slingsby
13 & Under Div 1 Keely Holt Sophie Bell Zarah Driscoll, Jessica Dellar & Pia Miraglia

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Rhi White Rhiannon White Georgie Custance
B Grade Harmony Newman Keira Flack Tenielle Flack
C Grade Jason Bertrand Hayley Dummett Fiona Kent
17 & Under Div 1 Rhiannon White Charlotte Howell Jayde Bertrand
15 & Under Div 1 Diana Carter Bonnie Kininmonth Kelsy Sanford
13 & Under Div 1 Johanna Noseda Elsie Murnane Tayla Bertrand

NETBALL

NETBALL

BIRREGURRAALVIE

APOLLO BAY COLAC IMPERIALS

FOOTBALL

FOOTBALL

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Glen Darroch/James Rowan James Rowan Alex Burnett
Reserves Peter Hanlon/Jarmin Paddick Tom Anderson Drew Malone
Under 18 Matt Slater/Matt Nelson Archer Drummond Kurt Armistead
Under 14.5 Barney Maxwell Flynn Darroch Joe Broomfield

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Saskia Rowan Tess Blake Narelle Place
B Grade Jess Wood & Karen Hart Sarah Breed Kirsty Roberts
C Grade Jess Wood & Tess Blake Jess Wood Edwina Lidgerwood
D Grade Sarah Brien Elsinor Neave Megan Collins
17 & Under Div 1 Jess Wood & Tess Blake Darcy Permezel Kara Tyrer
15 & Under Div 1 Karen Hart & Narelle Place Maggie Hart Kaitlin Chappell
13 & Under Div 1 Molly Dunnill & Kara Tyrer Camryn Smith Maizee Clark
13 & Under Div 2 Ebony Armistead Luella Hutchinson Meah Pentz

NETBALL

FOOTBALL

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Paul Liistro Jeremy Spokes Sam Lucas & Daniel Trevaskis
Reserves Keegan Byrne & Anthony Foster Jack Featherstone Michael Gray
Under 18 Adam Harris Jett Price Jack Skinner
Under 14.5 Joel Flanagan & Paul Johnson Angus McNaughton Brod Lynch

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Tim Hassett *information not available prior to publicationUnder 15 Andrew Mallon

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Siobhan Casey Jessi Kerr Aliesha Walters
B Grade Siobhan Casey Bianca Morrow Abby Callahan
C Grade Bree McKenzie Bianca McKay Amy Ellis
D Grade Eva Callahan & Claire Foster Kaila Morris Nicole Johnstone
17 & Under Div 1 Emmy Perkins Isobel Scott Leah Perkins
15 & Under Div 1 Bianca McKay & Kirsty Holland Poppy Holland Tessah Harris
13 & Under Div 1 Abby Callahan Lani Foster Isabel Perkins

NETBALL

FOOTBALL

FEMALE FOOTBALL
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OTWAY DISTRICTSIRREWARRA-BEEAC

Lorne SIMPSON

FOOTBALL
GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP

Senior Cameron Parker Tyler Flanigan Dylan Flanigan
Reserves Luke Vickers Luke Nowell Josh Armstrong
Under 18 Tony Walker  and Robert Elbourough Mitchell Thornton Jack Barber
Under 14.5 Simon Dewar Toby Monaco Spencer Hall

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Jack Holmer Che Turner Mark MCcormack
Reserves Alan Alford Callum Mcarthy
Under 18 Liam Sayers Fraser Balderas Justin Peillon
Under 14.5 Luke Peillon Ray Dragovitch Will Larcombe

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Leah Ousey Courtney Garner Grace Garrner
B Grade Kate Watts Caroline Hitchings Hayley Morrissy
C Grade Courtney Garner Abby Park Narelle Frith
D Grade Caroline Hitchings Heidi Robinson Emma Nowell
17 & Under Div 1 Ruby Marwood Eva Dexter Katie Dexter
15 & Under Div 1 Sandra Robinson Zara Walker Emilija Elbourough
13 & Under Div 1 Narelle Frith Emmy Frith Ruby Hall

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Carly Enticott Hannah Keane Alice Van Deuren
C Grade Hannah Keane Lola Harding Tyla Maher
15 & Under Div 1 Carly Enticott Mia Bayley Amber Cain
13 & Under Div 1 Tasmyn Fulton Sophie Tank Bella Howley 

NETBALL

NETBALL

FOOTBALL

FOOTBALL

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Sean Maxwell/ Stewart Sutherland Jasper Coutts Stewart Sutherland
Reserves Ken Hay Matt Williamson Zac Wakefield
Under 18 Matthew Zurbo Tein Britton Frankey Farnes
Under 14.5 Riley Lawlor Reegan Brown Ryan McAlindon

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Thomas Leishman/Nick Harding Brenton DeJong Jamie Barry
Reserves Zac Tesselaar/Brad Salmon Matthew Delahay Jacob Mason
Under 18 Judson Jennings Kristofer Gristede Louis Duynhoven
Under 14.5 Matthew Drayton Ollie Rial Billy Hawkes

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Candi Panther/Billy Mahoney Claire Robertson Brooke Hawkins
B Grade Jane Russell Jordyn Murnane Larni Conn
C Grade Jacqui Dignan Maddison Bone Sam Ayres
D Grade Linda Aurish Monica Flaherty Katelyn harris
17 & Under Div 1 Monica Flaherty/Anne Ruddell Ella Brauer Makinley O'Reilly
15 & Under Div 1 Sandra Farnes Annie Flaherty Takira Mason
13 & Under Div 1 Jacqui Dignan Hope Ayres Eve Ayres

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Rebecca Mitchell Chloe Gray Amy Pemberton
B Grade Melissa Drayton/Maddi Cunnigton Melissa Drayton Hayley Weel/Britany Wright
C Grade Tanya Campbell Laura Withall/Georgia Arndell Tanya Campbell/Jade Sambell
D Grade Georgia Arndell Megan Burbidge/ Indiana Duynhoven Ingrid Withall
13 & Under Div 1 Maddie Hollis Milah Crole Tyra Sambell

NETBALL

NETBALL

FOOTBALL

FOOTBALL
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SOUTH COLAC

WESTERN EAGLES

FOOTBALL
GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP

Senior Nick Lynch Josh Black Mitchell Perkins
Reserves Ryan Fennell Bailey Lingard Hayden Russell
Under 14.5 Adam McNamara / John Kelly Gavin Reynolds Aiden Kelly

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
Senior Craig Hardingham James Beasley Matthew Kenny
Reserves Brad Morgan and Justin Hickey Charlie Duncan Max Skinner
Under 18 Shaun Kingwell and Josh Landsbury-lowe Connor Carson Angus Connoley
Under 14.5 Phil Thompson and Kallan Thompson Jack Fish Tully Borgia

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Edwina Parker Edwina Parker Mercedes Hickey 
B Grade Nicole Mitchell stacey McNamara Nicole Mitchell
C Grade Hannah Lugg Jorja Parker Hannah Lugg
D Grade Tracey Tann Gemma Culahan Rachel Downard 
17 & Under Div 1 Tracey Tann Morgan Brewer Jess Smith 
15 & Under Div 1 Molly Lugg & Laura Parker Taya Scott Lily Fountain 
13 & Under Div 1 Gen Erskine & Jenna Parker Neve Brewer Rubie Coutts 

GRADES COACHES BEST & FAIREST B & F RUNNER - UP
A Grade Jess Montano Jancy Shields-Jackson Leah Sherman
B Grade Danielle Bowen Olivia Montano Michelle Fraser
C Grade Sierra Ryan Lorraine Mahoney Sierra Ryan
19 & Under Fiona Penny Holly Unwin Elly Pownceby
15 & Under Div 1 Jess Montano Remy Duynhoven Briea McLachlan
13 & Under Div 1 Kess Duynhoven Mia Compton Rylee Reid

NETBALL

NETBALL

FOOTBALL

FOOTBALL

2021 LADDERS
CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
St Mary's 11 10 0 1 0 0 1141 521 219 42
Colac 11 10 1 0 0 0 1185 569 208.26 40
South Barwon 11 7 4 0 0 0 1102 775 142.19 28
Bell Park 11 7 4 0 0 0 969 758 127.84 28
Geelong West Giants 11 7 4 0 0 0 898 764 117.54 28
St Joseph's 11 7 4 0 0 0 939 807 116.36 28
Grovedale 11 6 5 0 0 0 970 1000 97 24
Newtown & Chilwell 11 5 5 1 0 0 895 873 102.52 22
Leopold 11 3 8 0 0 0 830 954 87 12
Lara 11 2 9 0 0 0 757 1159 65.31 8
North Shore 11 1 10 0 0 0 605 1343 45.05 4
St Albans 11 0 11 0 0 0 439 1207 36.37 0

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
St Mary's 11 10 1 0 0 0 1105 295 374.58 40
St Joseph's 11 10 1 0 0 0 898 459 195.64 40
South Barwon 11 9 2 0 0 0 980 462 212.12 36
Grovedale 11 7 4 0 0 0 846 534 158.43 28
Newtown & Chilwell 11 6 5 0 0 0 810 572 141.61 24
Geelong West Giants 11 6 5 0 0 0 664 501 132.53 24
Bell Park 11 6 5 0 0 0 623 626 99.52 24
Colac 11 5 6 0 0 0 664 540 122.96 20
Leopold 11 4 7 0 0 0 557 675 82.52 16
St Albans 11 2 9 0 0 0 446 889 50.17 8
Lara 11 1 10 0 0 0 504 1074 46.93 4
North Shore 11 0 11 0 0 0 166 1636 10.15 0

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
Torquay 12 12 0 0 0 0 1623 609 266.5 48
Modewarre 12 9 3 0 0 0 1130 753 150.07 36
Barwon Heads 12 8 4 0 0 0 1226 782 156.78 32
Ocean Grove 12 8 4 0 0 0 985 876 112.44 32
Anglesea 12 8 4 0 0 0 1059 991 106.86 32
Drysdale 12 6 6 0 0 0 1147 948 120.99 24
Newcomb 12 3 9 0 0 0 994 992 100.2 12
Queenscliff 12 3 9 0 0 0 1035 1148 90.16 12
Geelong Amateur 12 3 9 0 0 0 824 1169 70.49 12
Portarlington 12 0 12 0 0 0 320 2075 15.42 0

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
Barwon Heads 12 12 0 0 0 0 1216 354 343.5 48
Torquay 12 11 1 0 0 0 1409 434 324.65 44
Drysdale 12 8 3 1 0 0 967 522 185.25 34
Geelong Amateur 12 8 3 1 0 0 881 701 125.68 34
Modewarre 12 6 6 0 0 0 745 572 130.24 24
Newcomb 12 5 7 0 0 0 575 716 80.31 20
Anglesea 12 4 8 0 0 0 612 986 62.07 16
Ocean Grove 12 3 9 0 0 0 780 818 95.35 12
Queenscliff 12 2 10 0 0 0 634 1041 60.9 8
Portarlington 12 0 12 0 0 0 191 1866 10.24 0

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
Drysdale 11 9 2 0 0 0 485 287 168.99 30
Bannockburn 11 9 2 0 0 0 354 225 157.33 28
Modewarre / Queenscliff 11 7 4 0 0 0 485 349 138.97 24
East Geelong 11 7 4 0 0 0 507 279 181.72 22
Ocean Grove 11 4 7 0 0 0 346 358 96.65 14
Barwon Heads 11 4 7 0 0 0 407 449 90.65 14
Lara 11 3 8 0 0 0 275 448 61.38 10
South Barwon / St Joseph's 11 3 8 0 0 0 156 620 25.16 6

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
St Joseph's 12 9 2 1 0 0 557 319 174.61 33
Torquay 12 9 3 0 0 0 527 327 161.16 30
Newtown & Chilwell 12 9 3 0 0 0 404 266 151.88 30
St Mary's 12 8 4 0 0 0 401 333 120.42 26
South Barwon 12 7 4 1 0 0 452 355 127.32 25
Bell Park 12 7 5 0 0 0 481 414 116.18 22
Colac 12 4 8 0 0 0 307 435 70.57 14
Geelong Amateur 12 5 7 0 0 0 320 500 64 14
Leopold 12 4 8 0 0 0 336 545 61.65 12
Grovedale 12 1 11 0 0 0 220 511 43.05 2

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
Geelong West Giants 11 10 1 0 0 0 497 109 455.96 34
Lara Jenkins 10 7 3 0 0 2 272 187 145.45 30
Barwon Heads 12 8 4 0 0 0 458 219 209.13 28
Torquay Scott 11 8 3 0 0 1 311 242 128.51 28
Newtown & Chilwell Taylor 12 8 4 0 0 0 212 133 159.4 26
St Joseph's 12 7 5 0 0 0 415 248 167.34 22
Ammos Scarlett Nankervis 8 3 5 0 1 1 200 248 80.65 16
Saints 11 3 8 0 0 1 211 305 69.18 14
South Barwon Walerys 8 0 8 0 1 0 60 378 15.87 2
Grovedale Mahoney 12 0 12 0 0 0 34 601 5.66 0

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
Belmont Lions 11 7 4 0 0 0 430 211 203.79 26
North Shore 11 6 5 0 0 0 512 214 239.25 22
St Albans 11 1 9 1 0 0 199 426 46.71 6
Werribee Centrals 11 1 9 1 0 0 148 438 33.79 6

GFNL Senior Football Blood Toyota Cup GFNL Buckleys Reserve Cup

BFNL Buckleys Reserve CupBFNL Bellarine Seniors DOW Cup

U19 Div 2 Bendigo Bank CupUNDER 19 Div 1 Gforce Cup

UNDER 18 Female Epwoorth Cup
UNDER 19 Div 3 Corio Bay Health Group Cup

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
Geelong Amateur 1 11 11 0 0 0 0 552 108 511.11 36
Newtown & Chilwell 1 11 7 4 0 0 0 303 233 130.04 22
St Mary's 1 11 6 5 0 0 0 302 276 109.42 20
Grovedale 10 5 5 0 0 1 213 333 63.96 18
Geelong West Giants 1 11 5 6 0 0 0 175 180 97.22 16
Barwon Heads 1 11 2 9 0 0 0 143 558 25.63 4

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
North Geelong 11 7 4 0 0 0 449 70 641.43 28
Drysdale 11 8 3 0 0 0 404 166 243.37 26
Newtown & Chilwell 2 11 7 4 0 0 0 186 376 49.47 20
St Mary's 2 11 6 5 0 0 0 251 280 89.64 18
Geelong West Giants 2 11 4 7 0 0 0 101 267 37.83 12
Lara 11 4 7 0 0 0 138 370 37.3 10

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
St Joseph's 11 7 4 0 0 0 619 128 483.59 28
Torquay 11 6 4 1 0 0 373 121 308.26 24
Colac Imperials 10 6 4 0 0 0 435 144 302.08 22
Anglesea 11 6 4 1 0 0 442 150 294.67 20
South Barwon 11 6 5 0 0 0 273 171 159.65 20
Geelong Amateur 2 11 3 8 0 0 0 104 469 22.17 10
St Albans 11 2 9 0 0 0 93 500 18.6 6
Barwon Heads 2 11 0 11 0 0 0 17 673 2.53 0

Senior Female Epworth Cup Div 1

Senior Female Epworth Cup Div 2

Senior Female Epworth cup Div 3
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2021 JUNIOR FOOTBALL LADDERS 2021 JUNIOR FOOTBALL LADDERS
CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
St Mary's Digby 13 12 1 0 0 0 858 177 484.75 42
Torquay Papworth 13 11 2 0 0 0 700 272 257.35 38
St Joseph's Podbury 13 11 2 0 0 0 750 283 265.02 36
Ocean Grove Red 13 8 5 0 0 0 517 465 111.18 26
Geelong West Giants Orange 13 7 6 0 0 0 498 373 133.51 22
Colac 13 7 6 0 0 0 313 689 45.43 22
Newtown & Chilwell Harrington 13 4 9 0 0 0 335 564 59.4 14
Ammos Kershaw 13 4 9 0 0 0 188 620 30.32 12
Lara Cook 13 3 10 0 0 0 420 685 61.31 10
Grovedale Broad 13 3 10 0 0 0 238 689 34.54 8

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
Anglesea 12 9 3 0 1 0 575 297 193.6 36

Drysdale Nofi 13 9 4 0 0 0 702 276 254.35 34

St Albans Osborne 13 8 5 0 0 0 548 277 197.83 30

Bannockburn 13 5 8 0 0 0 438 462 94.81 14

Torquay Shearer 13 5 8 0 0 0 158 652 24.23 12

Portarlington 13 3 10 0 0 0 249 706 35.27 8

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
St Joseph's Black 13 13 0 0 0 0 702 123 570.73 44

Ocean Grove Walter 13 10 3 0 0 0 560 174 321.84 36

Ammos Kelly 13 7 5 1 0 0 312 371 84.1 24

Torquay Watson 13 6 7 0 0 0 392 363 107.99 18

South Barwon Stewart 13 4 8 1 0 0 155 613 25.29 12

St Mary's Rodgers 13 5 8 0 0 0 110 587 18.74 12

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
Newtown & Chilwell Higgins 12 12 0 0 0 0 458 58 789.66 40

Lara Orr 12 9 3 0 0 0 302 171 176.61 30

Torquay Boyse 12 8 3 1 0 0 333 109 305.5 29

Geelong West Giants 12 9 3 0 0 0 217 85 255.29 28

St Mary's 12 6 5 1 0 0 284 199 142.71 21

Ocean Grove Red 12 3 9 0 0 0 202 310 65.16 10

Ammos Gould 12 2 10 0 0 0 120 393 30.53 6

St Joseph's 12 3 9 0 0 0 58 649 8.94 6

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
Torquay Bumpstead 13 13 0 0 0 0 781 217 359.91 44

Newtown & Chilwell Morrissy 13 11 2 0 0 0 569 310 183.55 36

Ammos Cogan 13 8 5 0 0 0 614 323 190.09 26

St Joseph's Black 13 7 6 0 0 0 516 576 89.58 24

St Mary's McMahon 13 6 6 1 0 0 500 433 115.47 23

Bannockburn Gold 13 6 6 1 0 0 358 632 56.65 19

Ocean Grove Grubbers 13 4 9 0 0 0 339 525 64.57 12

Bell Park Reid 13 2 11 0 0 0 187 848 22.05 4

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
Torquay Stone 13 12 1 0 0 0 520 139 374.1 40
Bannockburn 13 11 2 0 0 0 477 202 236.14 38
Ammos Bucovaz 13 9 4 0 0 0 562 172 326.74 32
Drysdale McGuire 13 9 4 0 0 0 390 363 107.44 30
Grovedale Campi 13 8 5 0 0 0 312 281 111.03 28
Anglesea 13 6 7 0 0 0 195 502 38.84 16
Modewarre Russell 13 3 10 0 0 0 187 320 58.44 10
Ocean Grove Pearson 7 2 5 0 0 0 217 278 78.06 8
Leopold 13 2 11 0 0 0 162 370 43.78 8
Newtown & Chilwell Harris 13 2 11 0 0 0 140 673 20.8 4

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
Portarlington 13 12 1 0 0 0 857 237 361.6 42

Torquay Dunstan 13 11 2 0 0 0 858 167 513.77 38

Anglesea 13 8 4 1 0 0 520 405 128.4 30

South Barwon Brebner 13 7 6 0 0 0 382 505 75.64 22

Queenscliff 13 6 6 1 0 0 422 565 74.69 20

Anakie / Little River 13 6 7 0 0 0 401 560 71.61 18

St Joseph's Red 13 4 9 0 0 0 194 827 23.46 10

Ocean Grove Red 13 2 11 0 0 0 282 650 43.38 6

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
Northern Stars 13 10 3 0 0 0 422 305 138.36 34

Ammos Lever 13 8 5 0 0 0 268 230 116.52 26

Torquay Bruce 13 7 6 0 0 0 275 272 101.1 26

St Joseph's Yellow 13 8 5 0 0 0 264 204 129.41 24

Portarlington Red 13 4 9 0 0 0 250 311 80.39 14

St Mary's Dunstan 13 3 10 0 0 0 236 393 60.05 10

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
Ammos Reilly 13 11 2 0 0 0 569 265 214.72 38

Torquay Pyers 13 9 4 0 0 0 561 326 172.09 32

Torquay Bayles 13 7 6 0 0 0 380 505 75.25 24

Bannockburn Black 13 7 6 0 0 0 415 349 118.91 22

Lara Gillett 13 4 9 0 0 0 397 617 64.34 12

Surf Coast Suns 13 3 10 0 0 0 308 568 54.23 8

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
East Geelong Thomson 13 12 1 0 0 0 464 106 437.74 40

Portarlington Blue 13 9 4 0 0 0 312 236 132.2 32

Geelong West Giants Grey 13 6 7 0 0 0 400 168 238.1 24

Bell Park Robertson 13 4 9 0 0 0 241 280 86.07 14

Newtown & Chilwell Hyland 13 4 9 0 0 0 148 404 36.63 12

Drysdale / Leopold 12 4 8 0 0 0 100 471 21.23 10

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
Leopold 13 11 2 0 0 0 744 255 291.76 40

Modewarre 11 7 4 0 2 0 277 344 80.52 30

Queenscliff 11 6 5 0 2 0 378 376 100.53 28

Barwon Heads 11 6 5 0 2 0 391 366 106.83 26

South Barwon McCann 12 5 7 0 1 0 405 338 119.82 22

Torquay Jones 11 4 7 0 2 0 157 431 36.43 20

Bell Park 13 2 11 0 0 0 281 523 53.73 6

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
St Joseph's Hill 13 10 3 0 0 0 567 174 325.86 36

St Mary's Turnley 12 7 5 0 1 0 555 283 196.11 30

Geelong West Giants Grey 12 6 6 0 1 0 385 368 104.62 22

Ocean Grove White 13 4 9 0 0 0 412 406 101.48 16

East Geelong 13 4 9 0 0 0 390 532 73.31 16

Lara Mathieson 12 1 11 0 1 0 177 723 24.48 4

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
Geelong West Giants Orange 13 11 2 0 0 0 728 130 560 40

Barwon Heads Swinton 13 10 3 0 0 0 661 166 398.19 36

Bell Park Gallichan 13 7 6 0 0 0 454 301 150.83 24

Colac 13 3 10 0 0 0 248 391 63.43 12

Newtown & Chilwell Alford 13 3 10 0 0 0 259 584 44.35 10

Lara Smith 13 3 10 0 0 0 297 715 41.54 10

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
Barwon Heads 11 8 3 0 1 0 360 76 473.68 34
South Barwon Laherty 11 8 3 0 1 0 306 112 273.21 32
Saints Power 11 7 4 0 1 0 207 110 188.18 28
Drysdale Deller 11 6 4 1 1 0 201 111 181.08 26
Torquay Suns 11 7 4 0 1 0 251 147 170.75 26
Colac Imperials 11 4 6 1 1 0 221 139 158.99 20
Grovedale Kerr 12 5 7 0 1 0 142 305 46.56 20
Ocean Grove White 11 4 7 0 2 0 152 343 44.31 18
Leopold 9 2 7 0 3 0 179 216 82.87 16
Lara Young 11 2 9 0 2 0 82 308 26.62 14
Bannockburn 11 1 10 0 1 0 142 376 37.77 8

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
South Barwon Holz 13 10 3 0 0 0 754 236 319.49 38
Leopold 1 13 10 3 0 0 0 741 295 251.19 36
Colac 13 8 5 0 0 0 575 296 194.26 30
Geelong West Giants 13 6 7 0 0 0 480 358 134.08 24
Lara Founds 13 6 6 1 0 0 532 429 124.01 22
Drysdale Jull 13 7 6 0 0 0 463 409 113.2 22
Grovedale Hood 13 5 8 0 0 0 386 487 79.26 16
Newtown & Chilwell Hall 13 5 8 0 0 0 145 859 16.88 12
Barwon Heads 13 2 10 1 0 0 335 580 57.76 10
St Mary's Dobbyn 13 2 11 0 0 0 163 625 26.08 4

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
St Joseph's Red 13 11 2 0 0 0 487 142 342.96 40

Queenscliff 13 9 3 1 0 0 292 175 166.86 34

Barwon Heads Polley 13 8 4 1 0 0 456 185 246.49 32

Inverleigh Hawks 13 8 5 0 0 0 406 259 156.76 28

St Albans Grinter 13 5 8 0 0 0 190 426 44.6 14

South Barwon Garvey 13 3 10 0 0 0 166 342 48.54 10

Surf Coast Suns Deadly 13 4 9 0 0 0 184 412 44.66 10

Torquay Milliken 13 2 11 0 0 0 180 420 42.86 6

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
St Albans McFarlane 13 10 3 0 0 0 621 224 277.23 36

Modewarre 13 10 3 0 0 0 624 321 194.39 34

Ammos Hosking 13 8 5 0 0 0 524 255 205.49 32

Inverleigh Hawks 13 7 6 0 0 0 463 377 122.81 24

East West Geelong 13 6 7 0 0 0 344 493 69.78 20

Newcomb Power 13 5 8 0 0 0 324 632 51.27 14

St Mary's Johnson 13 4 9 0 0 0 289 505 57.23 12

Thomson 13 3 10 0 0 0 242 624 38.78 6

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
Modewarre Harvey 13 11 2 0 0 0 487 134 363.43 40

Lara Wilson 13 8 5 0 0 0 414 309 133.98 30

Little River / Anakie / Northern Stars 13 7 6 0 0 0 400 329 121.58 24

Ammos Hutchison 13 8 5 0 0 0 329 289 113.84 24

Torquay Davie 13 7 6 0 0 0 326 300 108.67 24

Ocean Grove Every 13 7 6 0 0 0 270 279 96.77 22

South Barwon Thompson 13 4 9 0 0 0 142 462 30.74 10

Ocean Grove Dean 13 2 11 0 0 0 182 448 40.62 6

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
Bell Post Hill 13 8 5 0 0 0 627 251 249.8 32

Grovedale Bateman 13 8 5 0 0 0 531 314 169.11 30

Leopold 2 13 8 5 0 0 0 592 392 151.02 28

Bell Park Campigli 13 7 6 0 0 0 689 242 284.71 26

Drysdale Gage 11 7 4 0 1 0 474 327 144.95 26

St Mary's Hosking 13 2 11 0 0 0 259 619 41.84 8

Ocean Grove White 12 1 11 0 1 0 315 608 51.81 4

South Barwon / St Joseph's 13 0 13 0 0 0 120 854 14.05 0

CLUB P W L D BYE FF FOR AGST % PTS
Newcomb Power 13 10 3 0 0 0 470 88 534.09 38

St Joseph's White 13 8 4 0 1 0 499 151 330.46 32

Grovedale Whyte 13 8 4 1 0 0 317 148 214.19 28

Armstrong Creek Sharks 13 5 8 0 0 0 300 363 82.64 18

Bell Post Hill 13 3 9 1 0 0 269 327 82.26 14

Surf Coast Suns Lightning 13 4 9 0 0 0 195 451 43.24 14

Surf Coast Suns Flyers 13 3 10 0 0 0 133 278 47.84 12

Lara Fogarty 13 1 12 0 0 0 89 466 19.1 4

UNDER 17 Div 1 Kempe Cup

UNDER 17 Div 3 Geelong Advertiser Cup UNDER 13 Div 1 Kempe Cup

UNDER 15 Div 1 Female Epworth Cup

UNDER 15 Div 1 Kempe Cup UNDER 13 Div 3 Geelong Advertiser Cup

U15 Div 3 Geelong Advertiser Cup UNDER 13 Div 5 Geelong Advertiser Cup

UNDER 15 Div 5 Kempe cup UNDER 13 Div 7 Corio Bay Health Group 

UNDER 17 Div 2  Buckleys Cup

UNDER 17 Div 4 Buckleys Cup UNDER 13 Div 2 Buckleys Cup

UNDER 15 Female Div 2 Corio Bay Health Group Cup

UNDER 15 Div 2 Buckleys Cup UNDER 13 Div 4 Kempe Cup

U15 Div 4 Kempe Cup UNDER 13 Div 6 Medibank Cup

UNDER 15 Div 6 Kempe Cup UNDER 13 Div 8 Geelong Advertiser Cup
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2021 SENIOR NETBALL LADDERS 2021 JUNIOR NETBALL LADDERS

CLUB P W L D FOR AGST PTS %
Geelong Amateur 12 12 0 0 776 355 48 218.59
Torquay 12 10 2 0 615 343 40 179.3
Barwon Heads 12 7 4 1 571 490 30 116.53
Modewarre 12 6 4 2 569 485 28 117.32
Ocean Grove 12 6 5 1 527 440 26 119.77
Drysdale 12 6 6 0 530 447 24 118.57
Queenscliff 12 5 7 0 525 547 20 95.98
Portarlington 12 5 7 0 376 543 20 69.24
Anglesea 12 1 11 0 327 752 4 43.48
Newcomb 12 0 12 0 371 785 0 47.2

CLUB P W L D FOR AGST PTS %
Geelong Amateur 12 11 1 0 632 366 44 172.68
Ocean Grove 12 10 2 0 596 363 40 164.19
Barwon Heads 12 10 2 0 518 377 40 137.4
Queenscliff 12 7 5 0 470 382 28 123.04
Torquay 12 7 5 0 462 398 28 116.08
Modewarre 12 5 7 0 426 410 20 103.9
Portarlington 12 4 8 0 433 595 16 72.77
Drysdale 12 3 9 0 330 515 12 64.08
Anglesea 12 2 10 0 347 528 8 65.72
Newcomb 12 1 11 0 307 587 4 52.3

CLUB P W L D FOR AGST PTS %
Ocean Grove 12 12 0 0 505 230 48 219.57
Geelong Amateur 12 10 2 0 425 286 40 148.6
Drysdale 12 8 4 0 470 325 32 144.62
Torquay 12 8 4 0 413 302 32 136.75
Barwon Heads 12 8 4 0 383 300 32 127.67
Modewarre 12 6 6 0 337 319 24 105.64
Queenscliff 12 4 8 0 283 374 16 75.67
Anglesea 12 2 10 0 293 385 8 76.1
Newcomb 12 1 11 0 246 527 4 46.68
Portarlington 12 1 11 0 245 552 4 44.38

CLUB P W L D FOR AGST PTS %
Geelong Amateur 12 10 2 0 441 228 40 193.42
Ocean Grove 12 10 2 0 437 228 40 191.67
Torquay 12 9 3 0 382 214 36 178.5
Barwon Heads 12 9 3 0 371 229 36 162.01
Queenscliff 12 7 5 0 351 217 28 161.75
Modewarre 12 6 6 0 290 270 24 107.41
Drysdale 12 5 7 0 315 343 20 91.84
Anglesea 12 2 10 0 217 435 8 49.89
Newcomb 12 2 10 0 192 411 8 46.72
Portarlington 12 0 12 0 115 536 0 21.46

CLUB P W L D BYE FOR AGST PTS %
Queenscliff 9 7 2 0 3 273 173 40 157.8

Barwon Heads 9 7 2 0 3 215 166 40 129.52

Torquay 10 7 3 0 2 279 185 36 150.81

Geelong Amateur 9 6 3 0 3 221 177 36 124.86

Ocean Grove 9 4 5 0 3 168 214 28 78.5

Modewarre 8 1 6 1 4 145 197 22 73.6

Anglesea 9 1 7 1 3 178 251 18 70.92

Portarlington 5 0 5 0 1 66 182 4 36.26

CLUB P W L D BYE FOR AGST PTS %
Newtown & Chilwell 10 10 0 0 1 672 410 44 163.9
Colac 10 8 2 0 1 472 391 36 120.72
St Albans 10 7 3 0 1 561 435 32 128.97
St Marys 10 6 3 1 1 491 471 30 104.25
Geelong West Giants 10 6 4 0 1 485 433 28 112.01
St Josephs 10 5 4 1 1 372 383 26 97.13
South Barwon 9 4 5 0 2 459 455 24 100.88
Bell Park 10 4 6 0 1 491 479 20 102.51
Leopold 11 3 8 0 0 421 528 12 79.73
Lara 10 1 9 0 1 343 572 8 59.97
Grovedale 10 0 10 0 1 334 544 4 61.4

CLUB P W L D BYE FOR AGST PTS %
St Marys 10 10 0 0 1 525 338 44 155.33
South Barwon 9 8 1 0 2 474 276 40 171.74
Newtown & Chilwell 10 8 2 0 1 499 362 36 137.85
Geelong West Giants 10 7 3 0 1 449 390 32 115.13
Colac 10 5 5 0 1 425 376 24 113.03
St Josephs 10 5 5 0 1 375 372 24 100.81
Bell Park 10 4 6 0 1 425 405 20 104.94
St Albans 10 4 6 0 1 397 415 20 95.66
Leopold 11 3 8 0 0 379 469 12 80.81
Lara 10 1 9 0 1 294 486 8 60.49
Grovedale 10 0 10 0 1 198 551 4 35.93

CLUB P W L D BYE FOR AGST PTS %
South Barwon 9 9 0 0 2 412 222 44 185.59
Colac 10 8 2 0 1 332 271 36 122.51
Leopold 11 8 3 0 0 409 311 32 131.51
Geelong West Giants 10 7 3 0 1 375 295 32 127.12
St Josephs 10 6 4 0 1 323 231 28 139.83
St Marys 10 6 4 0 1 327 290 28 112.76
Bell Park 10 4 6 0 1 302 276 20 109.42
Newtown & Chilwell 10 4 6 0 1 349 357 20 97.76
Lara 10 2 8 0 1 225 337 12 66.77
Grovedale 10 1 9 0 1 165 438 8 37.67
St Albans 10 0 10 0 1 235 426 4 55.16

CLUB P W L D BYE FOR AGST PTS %
South Barwon 9 8 1 0 2 286 160 40 178.75
St Marys 10 9 1 0 1 326 209 40 155.98
St Josephs 10 8 2 0 1 315 212 36 148.58
Bell Park 10 7 3 0 1 309 186 32 166.13
Newtown & Chilwell 10 7 3 0 1 315 232 32 135.78
Colac 10 5 5 0 1 295 250 24 118
Geelong West Giants 10 4 6 0 1 273 204 20 133.82
Leopold 11 4 7 0 0 307 317 16 96.85
St Albans 10 2 8 0 1 186 426 12 43.66
Lara 10 1 9 0 1 200 369 8 54.2
Grovedale 10 0 10 0 1 140 387 4 36.18

CLUB P W L D BYE FOR AGST PTS %
Geelong West Giants 10 9 0 1 1 287 117 42 245.3
South Barwon 10 9 1 0 1 380 206 40 184.47
St Marys 10 8 2 0 1 225 153 36 147.06
St Josephs 9 5 3 1 2 248 164 30 151.22
Bell Park 10 5 3 2 1 234 165 28 141.82
Grovedale 10 6 4 0 1 246 225 28 109.33
St Albans 10 3 7 0 1 203 231 16 87.88
Newtown & Chilwell 10 3 7 0 1 208 238 16 87.39
Leopold 10 3 7 0 1 178 204 16 87.25
Lara 11 2 9 0 0 160 357 8 44.82
North Shore 10 0 10 0 1 80 389 4 20.57

CLUB P W L D BYE FOR AGST PTS %
Colac 11 11 0 0 1 396 180 48 220
Newtown & Chilwell 11 10 1 0 1 390 171 44 228.07
South Barwon 10 8 2 0 2 296 185 40 160
Bell Park 11 8 3 0 1 319 230 36 138.7
St Marys 11 6 5 0 1 276 215 28 128.37
Leopold 11 5 6 0 1 264 301 24 87.71
Grovedale 11 4 7 0 1 208 312 20 66.67
Geelong West Giants 11 3 8 0 1 184 336 16 54.76
St Josephs 11 2 9 0 1 210 304 12 69.08
Lara 11 2 9 0 1 203 338 12 60.06
St Albans 11 1 10 0 1 201 375 8 53.6

CLUB P W L D FOR AGST PTS %
Queenscliff 13 12 1 0 489 259 48 188.8
Geelong Amateur 13 11 1 1 351 204 48 172.06
Barwon Heads 13 9 4 0 332 223 36 148.88
Ocean Grove 13 8 5 0 354 307 32 115.31
Newcomb 13 6 6 1 335 310 26 108.06
Drysdale 13 6 6 1 332 311 26 106.75
Torquay 13 5 7 1 260 225 24 115.56
Portarlington 13 4 9 0 261 307 16 85.02
Modewarre 13 2 11 0 159 439 8 36.22
Anglesea 13 0 13 0 112 400 0 28

CLUB P W L D FOR AGST PTS %
Ocean Grove 14 13 0 1 406 75 54 541.33
Geelong Amateur 14 12 1 1 283 100 50 283
Drysdale 14 11 3 0 351 117 44 300
Torquay 14 9 5 0 261 106 36 246.23
Barwon Heads 14 6 7 1 84 153 26 54.9
Modewarre 14 6 8 0 135 192 24 70.31
Anglesea 13 5 8 0 150 223 20 67.26
Queenscliff 14 3 10 1 99 236 14 41.95
Newcomb 13 2 11 0 70 241 8 29.05
Portarlington 14 0 14 0 27 423 0 6.38

CLUB P W L D BYE FOR AGST PTS %
Barwon Heads 9 6 1 2 5 263 223 48 117.94

Queenscliff 10 6 2 2 4 228 152 44 150

Torquay 10 6 3 1 4 251 215 42 116.74

Portarlington 10 5 3 2 4 209 193 40 108.29

Ocean Grove 9 4 5 0 6 201 219 36 91.78

Geelong Amateur 10 2 8 0 5 195 272 24 71.69

Drysdale 10 1 8 1 5 232 305 22 76.07

CLUB P W L D BYE FOR AGST PTS %
Geelong Amateur 14 12 2 0 0 453 183 48 247.54
Ocean Grove 14 12 2 0 0 493 212 48 232.55
Torquay 14 12 2 0 0 445 203 48 219.21
Barwon Heads 13 9 4 0 1 300 256 40 117.19
Drysdale 14 7 7 0 0 321 323 28 99.38
Modewarre 13 5 8 0 1 303 331 24 91.54
Portarlington 13 4 9 0 1 230 392 20 58.67
Newcomb 12 2 10 0 1 185 385 12 48.05
Anglesea 10 1 9 0 2 136 358 4 37.99
Queenscliff 13 0 13 0 1 118 412 4 28.64

CLUB P W L D BYE FOR AGST PTS %
Drysdale 11 10 1 0 4 367 182 52 201.65
Ocean Grove 10 8 2 0 4 299 128 48 233.59
Barwon Heads 11 8 2 1 3 305 198 46 154.04
Torquay 12 7 4 1 2 257 206 38 124.76
Queenscliff 12 5 7 0 2 251 255 28 98.43
Geelong Amateur 11 4 7 0 4 175 202 28 86.63
Portarlington 11 1 10 0 3 114 353 16 32.29
Anglesea 10 0 10 0 4 105 349 16 30.09

CLUB P W L D BYE FOR AGST PTS %
Ocean Grove 12 12 0 0 2 411 110 56 373.64
Torquay 13 8 3 2 1 338 189 40 178.84
Barwon Heads 13 8 4 1 1 340 243 38 139.92
Modewarre 12 7 4 1 2 269 239 38 112.55
Drysdale 12 7 5 0 2 301 222 36 135.59
Queenscliff 13 6 6 1 1 270 248 30 108.87
Geelong Amateur 13 4 8 1 2 250 219 22 114.16
Anglesea 12 1 11 0 2 67 398 12 16.83
Portarlington 13 1 12 0 1 71 449 8 15.81

CLUB P W L D BYE FOR AGST PTS %
Ocean Grove 9 8 1 0 6 207 114 52 181.58

Geelong Amateur 10 8 2 0 5 239 111 48 215.32

Portarlington 10 7 3 0 4 189 142 44 133.1

Drysdale 10 6 4 0 5 203 123 40 165.04

Torquay 10 3 7 0 4 120 157 28 76.43

Queenscliff 10 2 8 0 4 124 265 24 46.79

Barwon Heads 9 0 9 0 5 48 218 20 22.02

CLUB P W L D BYE FOR AGST PTS %
St Marys 12 11 1 0 1 508 173 48 293.64
Bell Park 12 10 2 0 1 384 208 44 184.62
Newtown & Chilwell 12 9 3 0 1 401 248 40 161.69
South Barwon 11 8 3 0 2 325 240 40 135.42
St Josephs 12 8 4 0 1 356 276 36 128.99
Leopold 12 7 5 0 1 366 298 32 122.82
Colac 12 5 7 0 1 302 270 24 111.85
Geelong West Giants 12 4 8 0 1 271 326 20 83.13
Grovedale 12 2 10 0 1 169 418 12 40.43
St Albans 11 1 10 0 2 171 426 12 40.14
Lara 12 0 12 0 1 114 484 4 23.55

CLUB P W L D BYE FOR AGST PTS %
St Marys 7 6 1 0 6 204 112 48 182.14
Newtown & Chilwell 9 7 2 0 4 274 151 44 181.46
South Barwon 8 6 2 0 5 243 136 44 178.68
St Josephs 8 6 2 0 5 225 160 44 140.63
Colac 9 5 4 0 4 236 191 36 123.56
Bell Park 9 2 7 0 4 150 284 24 52.82
Leopold 9 1 8 0 4 117 263 20 44.49
Grovedale 9 1 8 0 4 121 273 20 44.32

CLUB P W L D BYE FOR AGST PTS %
St Marys 12 12 0 0 1 351 223 52 157.4
Newtown & Chilwell 12 10 1 1 1 364 143 46 254.55
Colac 12 9 3 0 1 305 259 40 117.76
South Barwon 11 7 3 1 2 335 209 38 160.29
Geelong West Giants 12 7 5 0 1 256 203 32 126.11
St Albans 11 5 6 0 2 251 313 28 80.19
Bell Park 12 4 6 2 1 246 238 24 103.36
St Josephs 12 4 7 1 1 238 255 22 93.33
Lara 12 2 9 1 1 204 258 14 79.07
Leopold 12 2 10 0 1 237 351 12 67.52
Grovedale 12 0 12 0 1 139 474 4 29.32

CLUB P W L D BYE FOR AGST PTS %
Newtown & Chilwell 12 12 0 0 1 657 136 52 483.09
Colac 12 11 1 0 1 451 180 48 250.56
St Marys 12 8 3 1 1 336 206 38 163.11
Bell Park 12 8 4 0 1 304 268 36 113.43
South Barwon 11 6 4 1 2 285 218 34 130.73
St Albans 11 6 5 0 2 298 263 32 113.31
St Josephs 12 6 6 0 1 275 253 28 108.7
Geelong West Giants 12 3 9 0 1 174 303 16 57.43
Leopold 12 2 10 0 1 105 457 12 22.98
Lara 12 1 11 0 1 159 350 8 45.43
Grovedale 12 1 11 0 1 65 475 8 13.68

CLUB P W L D BYE FOR AGST PTS %
St Albans 11 10 0 1 2 280 121 50 231.4
Newtown & Chilwell 12 10 2 0 1 304 154 44 197.4
Geelong West Giants 12 10 2 0 1 341 184 44 185.33
South Barwon 11 7 4 0 2 250 153 36 163.4
St Josephs 12 8 4 0 1 294 190 36 154.74
Colac 12 7 5 0 1 327 250 32 130.8
Grovedale 12 5 7 0 1 315 249 24 126.51
St Marys 12 3 8 1 1 224 275 18 81.45
Lara 12 2 10 0 1 165 275 12 60
Bell Park 12 2 10 0 1 112 410 12 27.32
Leopold 12 0 12 0 1 94 445 4 21.12

CLUB P W L D BYE FOR AGST PTS %
St Josephs 12 12 0 0 1 336 129 52 260.47
South Barwon 11 9 2 0 2 283 126 44 224.6
Grovedale 12 9 3 0 1 314 148 40 212.16
Colac 12 8 4 0 1 222 160 36 138.75
St Marys 12 7 5 0 1 208 112 32 185.71
Geelong West Giants 12 7 5 0 1 227 166 32 136.75
St Albans 11 5 6 0 2 185 171 28 108.19
Newtown & Chilwell 12 5 7 0 1 255 178 24 143.26
Leopold 12 2 10 0 1 80 277 12 28.88
Lara 12 1 11 0 1 37 400 8 9.25
Bell Park 12 0 12 0 1 72 352 4 20.45

BFNL A Grade Dow Cup

BFNL B Grade Buckleys Cup

BFNL C Grade epworth Cup

BFNL D Grade Medibank Cup

BFNL E Grade Geelong Advertiser Cup

GFNL A Grade Buckleys Cup

GFNL B Grade Buckleys Cup

GFNL C Grade Blood Toyota Cup

GFNL D Grade Epworth Cup

GFNL E Grade Medibank Cup

GFNL 19 and Under G Force Cup BFNL 19 nd Under G Force Cup

BFNL 13 and Under Sec 2 Kempe Cup

BFNL 17 and Under Sec 1 Geelong Advertiser Cup

BFNL 17 and Under Sec 2 Geelong Advertiser Cup

BFNL 15 and Under Sec 1 Kempe Cup

BFNL 15 and Under Sec 2 Corio Bay Health Group cup

BFNL 13 and Under Sec 1 Kempe Cup

GFNL 17 and Under Div 1 Kempe Cup

GFNL 17 and Under Div 2 Corio Bay Health Group Cup

GFNL 15 and Under Div 1 Kempe Cup

GFNL 15 and Under Div 2 Corio Bay Health Group Cup

GFNL UNDER 13 Div 1 Kempe Cup

GFNL UNDER 13 Div 2 Kempe Cup
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2021 AFL BARWON JUNIOR NETBALL LADDERS

CLUB P W L D FOR AGST PTS %
Torquay Wakefield 9 7 1 1 249 143 42 174.13

St Marys Green 9 5 1 3 201 172 34 116.86

Grovedale Black 9 5 4 0 244 209 28 116.75

Bannockburn Black 9 4 4 1 221 211 26 104.74

St Josephs Gold 9 2 5 2 150 194 20 77.32

Surf Coast Cosy 9 0 8 1 119 255 2 46.67

CLUB P W L D FOR AGST PTS %
Modewarre 9 7 1 1 117 81 34 144.44

Newtown McMahon 9 6 1 2 162 118 32 137.29

Torquay Pyers 9 5 3 1 130 63 30 206.35

Lara Green 9 5 2 2 161 122 28 131.97

St Josephs Red 9 4 4 1 132 123 26 107.32

St Marys Blue 9 2 6 1 80 129 14 62.02

Barwon Heads 8 1 7 0 89 185 12 48.11

Bell Park Dragons 8 0 8 0 49 126 0 38.89

CLUB P W L D FOR AGST PTS %
South Barwon 2 9 9 0 0 247 86 44 287.21

Lara Red 9 6 3 0 211 98 36 215.31

Ammos Blue 9 6 3 0 171 127 36 134.65

St Josephs Gold 9 7 2 0 164 98 28 167.35

Ocean Grove Pink 9 4 5 0 165 130 24 126.92

Surf Coast Urquharts 9 1 7 1 80 184 8 43.48

Bannockburn Black 9 1 6 2 71 188 8 37.77

Drysdale 9 0 8 1 49 247 4 19.84

CLUB P W L D FOR AGST PTS %
Newtown Woolley 9 9 0 0 231 87 52 265.52

South Barwon Swans 9 7 2 0 221 101 44 218.81

Surf Coast Whites 9 7 2 0 130 112 44 116.07

Newtown Nutt 9 5 4 0 132 101 36 130.69

Ocean Grove Blue 9 3 6 0 78 137 20 56.93

St Marys Navy 9 2 7 0 63 135 12 46.67

St Josephs Gold 9 2 7 0 72 168 12 42.86

Grovedale Black 9 1 8 0 51 131 12 38.93

CLUB P W L D FOR AGST PTS %
Surf Coast Danger 9 8 1 0 164 93 44 176.34

Ammos Blue 9 6 3 0 119 96 38 123.96

Torquay Chafer 9 7 2 0 150 98 36 153.06

Ocean Grove Pink 9 2 6 1 97 122 20 79.51

Newtown O'Dwyer 9 2 7 0 79 142 20 55.63

South Barwon 1 9 1 7 1 64 122 10 52.46

CLUB P W L D FOR AGST PTS %
East Geelong 9 8 1 0 171 69 40 247.83

Barwon Heads 9 7 2 0 140 65 36 215.38

South Barwon 2 9 6 3 0 85 66 32 128.79

Surf Coast Roadknight 9 7 2 0 91 77 32 118.18

Ocean Grove Green 9 3 6 0 55 88 16 62.5

Drysdale 9 2 7 0 90 115 12 78.26

Bannockburn Gold 9 2 7 0 62 127 8 48.82

St Marys Green 9 1 8 0 64 151 8 42.38

CLUB P W L D FOR AGST PTS %
Bannockburn Black 9 8 1 0 116 73 44 158.9

Ammos Green 9 7 2 0 121 75 40 161.33

Giants Charcoal 9 6 3 0 104 76 32 136.84

Ammos White 9 5 4 0 88 74 30 118.92

Ocean Grove Purple 9 4 5 0 73 83 24 87.95

Giants Orange 9 3 6 0 50 103 14 48.54

Surf Coast Juc 9 2 7 0 112 140 12 80

Torquay Lewis 9 1 8 0 62 102 8 60.78

CLUB P W L D BYE FOR AGST PTS %

St Marys Navy 8 5 2 1 1 226 167 40 135.33

Surf Coast Winki 7 5 2 0 2 166 140 40 118.57

Torquay Fitzgerald 6 4 2 0 3 145 122 34 118.85

South Barwon 8 2 6 0 1 150 172 24 87.21

Newtown Rau 7 1 5 1 2 159 245 22 64.9

CLUB P W L D BYE FOR AGST PTS %
Newtown Jeanes 9 9 0 0 0 236 135 52 174.81

Torquay Baulch 9 7 2 0 0 208 153 36 135.95

South Barwon 1 9 4 5 0 0 162 171 28 94.74

Ocean Grove Blue 8 3 4 1 1 146 148 26 98.65

Torquay Saunders 9 2 6 1 0 137 150 22 91.33

Newtown Higgins 8 1 7 0 1 106 202 20 52.48

CLUB P W L D BYE FOR AGST PTS %
Newtown Lowe 6 6 0 0 1 159 78 44 203.85

Surf Coast Jarosite 7 4 3 0 2 127 130 40 97.69

St Marys Navy 8 6 2 0 1 154 102 36 150.98

Ocean Grove Purple 8 5 3 0 1 135 127 36 106.3

Surf Coast Birdrock 7 2 4 1 1 111 106 30 104.72

Torquay Shepherd 9 3 5 1 0 116 102 26 113.73

Ocean Grove Green 7 0 7 0 1 87 158 8 55.06

17 and Under Div 3

15 and Under Div 3 15 and Under Div 4

15 and Under Div 5 15 and Under Div 6

13 and Under Div 3

13 nd Under Div 613 and Under Div 5

13 and Under Div 4

17 and Under Div 4
E Grade Netball Best and Fairest
Winner: Charlotte West (St Marys)
Runner Up: Maddison White (South 
Barwon)

D Grade Netball Best and Fairest
Winner: Clare Hovey (St Marys) 
Runner Up: Caroline Morgan (St Josephs)

C Grade Netball Best and Fairest
Winner: Sarah Hungerford (St Josephs)
Runner Up: Kathryn Eastman (GWG)

B Grade Netball Best and Fairest
Joint Winners Tania Du Plessis (St 
Marys) and Jorden Gavin (South 
Barwon)

Allthorpe Medal Count (GFNL 
Buckley’s Reserves Best and Fairest)
Joint Winners Jarred Jans and Lachlan 
Devine both from St Joseph’s

Netball Hot Shots
E Grade Netball: 
Jessica Johns (South Barwon) 219
D Grade Netball: 
Molly Ennor (St Josephs) 170
C Grade Netball: 
Jessica Hardiman (St Josephs) 241
B Grade Netball: 
Jorden Gavin (South Barwon) 256
A Grade Netball: 
Jane Cook (St Albans) 369

Football Goal Kicking
Reserves Winner: Cameron Primmer 
from South Barwon (32 goals)
Seniors Winner: Tom Gillett from 
Grovedale (42 Goals)

Geelong Advertiser Award
Player of the Year 2021: Brant Haintz 
from St Joseph’s (15 votes)

Administrator of the Year Award
Football – Matt Aston (Leopold)
Netball – Cindy Hannam (St Joseph’s)

Club Championships
Football: Seniors + Res + Under 19 (1st 
Team) weighted: St Mary’s
Netball: Wins from Senior Grades (A-E): 
Newtown & Chilwell
Overall: Netball + Football: St Mary’s
Netball Rookie of the Year:
Zara Walters – Colac
Belmont Stereo Football Rookie of the 
Year: 
Tom Gillett (Grovedale)

K Rock Umpire of the Year 
voted by the GFNL Football Coaches: 
Chris Jones

K Rock MVP 
voted by all GFNL Senior Footballers: 
Harry Benson (St Mary’s)

Blood Toyota GFNL A Grade Best and 
Fairest
Dual Winners: Kaitlyn Sheringham (Bell 
Park) and Victoria Honner (St Josephs)

Mathieson Medal 
Runner up: Jordan Keras from St 
Joseph’s
Winner: Harry Benson – St Mary’s

AFL Barwon Junior Netball Best 
and Fairest Winners List
Under 13 Division 3:
Winner: Lily Sherman, South Barwon
Runner Up: Ruby Roe, Surf Coast Suns

Under 13 Division 4:
Winner: Jayde Morrissy, Newtown & 
Chilwell
Runner Up: Alice Sampson, Ocean Grove

Under 13 Division 5:
Winners: Ella Patterson, Geelong West 
Giants; Sophie Nurnaitis, Bannockburn

Under 13 Division 6
Winner: Caitlin Parker, Ocean Grove
Runners Up: Tyla Bennett, Barwon 
Heads; Lucy Veenvliet, Drysdale; Skye 
Howard, Barwon Heads

Under 15 Division 3
Winner: Honey Maui, Torquay
Runner Up: Olivia Hines, Newtown & 
Chilwell

Under 15 Division 4:
Winner: Stella Huxtable, Torquay
Runner Up: Molly Larsen, Ocean Grove

Under 15 Division 5
Winner: Ryah Crothers, Lara
Runner up: Jessica Ladhams, Modewarre

Under 15 Division 6
Winner: Lilli Hepburn, Ocean Grove
Runner Up: Annabelle Hutchings, 
Geelong Amateur

Under 17 Division 3
Winner: Lily Roe, Surf Coast Suns
Runner Up: Taiis Wallace, South Barwon

Under 17 Division 4
Winner: Georgia Smith, Torquay
Runner Up: Astton Millen, St Marys
Bellarine Netball League Junior Best and 
Fairest

Under 13 Division 1
Winner: Annalena Hillier, Port
Winner: Simone Choong, Drysdale

Under 13 Division 2
Winner: Teliah Smith, Ammos
Runner Up: Heidi Connor, Drysdale

Under 15 Division 1
Winner: Eden Henderson Craig, 
Queenscliff
Runner Up: Pippi McIntyre, Barwon 
Heads

Under 15 Division 2
Winner: Lucy Britton, Queenscliff
Runner Up: Grace Boland, Ocean Grove

Under 17 Division 1
Winner: Amelia Bakker, Queenscliff
Runner Up: Lexie Annand, Ocean Grove

Under 17 Division 2
Winner: Clodagh Newton, Modda
Runner Up: Milla Bell, Ocean Grove
Geelong Football Netball League Junior 
Best and Fairest

13 & Under Division 1
Winner: Ayisha Balogun, Newtown & 
Chilwell
Runner Up: Leni Hepburn, South Barwon

13 & Under Division 2
Winner: Emily McCormick, South Barwon
Runner Up: Charlotte Wardle, Newtown 
& Chilwell

15 & Under Division 1
Winner: Abby Hay, Colac
Runner Up: Charli Hoey, Geelong West 
Giants

15 & Under Division 2
Winner: Molly Bilyk, St Marys
Runners Up: Charlie Fraser, Colac; 
Jemima Toulas, Bell Park

17 & Under Division 1
Winner: Charlotte Murray, Leopold
Runners Up: Ava Cuolahan, Colac; 
Hayley Peck, St Marys; Lucy Camm, 
South Barwon.

17 & Under Division 2
Winner: Sophie Ford, St Josephs
Runners Up: Stella Mackay, Newtown & 
Chilwell; Bonnie Hockley, Leopold; Indie 
Joseph, Grovedale.

Junior Coach Encouragement Award: 
Victoria Smith, Geelong West Giants

Junior Trainee Umpire Encouragement 
Award: 
Emily Green, St Joseph’s

GFNL SENIOR AWARDS
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Geelong Advertiser E Grade Netball 
Best & Fairest: 
Joint Winners: Cassie Altimari 
(Torquay) & Terri-Anne Finch (Ocean 
Grove)

Medibank D Grade Netball Best & 
Fairest:
Winner: Phoebe Stebhens (Drysdale)
Joint Runners Up: Ashleigh Williams 
(Barwon Heads), Kelly Morrish (Ocean 
Grove) & Jarrah Cameron (Geelong 
Amateur)

Epworth C Grade Netball Best & 
Fairest:
Winner: Gemma Bell (Ocean Grove)
Runner Up: Ebony Lillico (Geelong 
Amateur)

Buckley’s B Grade Netball Best & 
Fairest:
Winner: Maddie Okely (Barwon Heads)
Runner Up: Georgia Downward (Torquay)

Don Cole Medal:
Winner: Troy Anderson (Modewarre)
Joint Runners Up Peter Kilpatrick 
(Drysdale) & Leigh Anderson (Modewarre)

Hotshot & Goal Kicking Awards
E Grade Netball:
Rebecca Ward (Queenscliff - 187)
D Grade Netball:
Jarrah Cameron )Geelong Amateur - 
279)
C Grade Netball:
Kathy Dunn (Drysdale - 319)
B Grade Netball:
Clare Spiden (Geelong Amateur - 268)
A Grade Netball:
Ruby Watson (Geelong Amateur - 531)

Goal Kicking
Reserves Winner:
Cory Connor (Ocean Grove - 27 goals)
Senior Winner:
Lucas Anderson (Torquay - 56 Goals)

The Geelong Advertiser Player of the 
Year 2021:
Senior Winner: Bradley Surkitt 
(Geelong Amateur - 18 votes)

Club Championships
Football: Seniors + Res + Under 19 (1st 
Team) weighted: Torquay
Netball: Wins (Senior Grades (A-E): 
Geelong Amateur
Overall: Netball +  Football: Torquay

Netball Rookie of the Year:
Maddison Connally (Drysdale)

Belmont Stereo Football Rookie of the 
Year:
Mitchell Taylor (Ocean Grove)

Dow BFNL A Grade Count:
Winner: Jessica Standfield (Torquay)
Runner Up: Ashlea Salter (Geelong 
Amateur)

Ash Medal Count:
Winner: James Darke (Torquay)
Runner Up: Nathan Brown (Barwon 
Heads)

Goal Kicking Trophies go to:
Division 3 Winner(s):
Charlotte Simpson (St Joseph’s - 21 
Goals)
Rebekah Lane (South Barwon - 21 
Goals) 
Camille King (Anglesea - 21 Goals)
Division 2 Winner:
Melissa Egan (Drysdale - 20 goals)
Division 1 Winner(s):
Rhianna Arnold (Geelong Amateur - 16 
goals)
Bianca Cheever (St Mary’s - 16 Goals)

Rookie of the Year Winner:
Isabella Hill (Grovedale)

Administrator of the Year:
Jess Case (Drysdale)

Epworth Senior Div 3:
Best & Fairest Winner: Charlotte 
Simpson (St Joseph’s)
Runner Up: Maggie Caudullo (South 
Barwon

Epworth Senior Div 2:
Best & Fairest Winner: Temikka 
Beeston (North Geelong)
Runner Up: Caitlin Pickett (Drysdale)

Epworth Senior Div 1:
Best & Fairest Winner: Isabella Hill 
(Grovedale)
Runner Up: Emily Ramsay (Geelong 
Amateur)

BFNL Netball 19&U Gforce Best & 
Fairest
Winners: Ebony Lillico (Geelong 
Amateur) & Kaitlin Gladman 
(Queenscliff)

2021 DOW Australia Tertiary 
Educational Scholarship winner
Issey Armstrong (Barwon Heads), 
starting Nursing degree in 2022

GFNL Netball 19&U Gforce Best & 
Fairest
Winner: Layla Holt (Colac)
Runner Up: Lily Schmidt (Grovedale)

Netball Hotshots
Gforce BFNL 19&U Netball: 
Kaitlin Gladman (Queenscliff - 279 
goals)
Gforce GFNL 19&U Netball: 
Eliza Duynhoven (Colac - 216 goals)

Football Goal Kicking Awards
Epworth U18 Female winner: 
Caprice Gitsham (Barwon Heads - 43 
goals)
Gforce U19 Male Division 1 winner: 
Herschelle Carr (St Joseph’s - 39 
goals)
Bendigo Bank U19 Male Division 2 
winner: 
Juanito Ramos (Bannockburn - 33 
goals)
Corio Bay Health Group U19 Male 
Division 3 winner: 
Brock Mahoney (Belmont Lions - 21 
goals)

Epworth U18 Female Football Best & 
Fairest
Winner: Mekah Morrissy (Newtown & 
Chilwell
Joint Runners Up: Aimee Wookey 
(Geelong West Giants) & Caitlin 
Bottomley (Geelong West Giants)

Corio Bay Health Group U19 Male 
Football Division 3 Best & Fairest
Joint winners Brock Mahoney 
(Belmont Lions) & Lochlan Large 
(North Shore)

Ray Ettridge Medal
The player (a GDFL club that polls the 
most votes in the highest graded Under 
19 Competition
Joint Winners: Ben Henderson & 
Austin Mulvahil (East Geelong)

Bendigo Bank U19 Male Football 
Division 2 Best & Fairest
Winner: Mitchell Keane (Modewarre/
Queenscliff)
Runner Up: Jeremiah Kalbitzer (Drysdale)

Gforce U19 Male Football Division 1 
Best & Fairest
Winner Jack Hall (Bell Park
Joint Runner Up Ethan Coffey (South 
Barwon), Alex Souflas (Newtown & 
Chilwell) & Aaron Hawker (Colac)

Jim Vivian Medal
The GFNL player who polled the most 
votes in their highest graded Under 19 
team
Jack Hall (Bell Park)

2021 Kempe Junior Football 
Vote Counts
Under 17 Division 1
Best & Fairest Winner: 
Patrick Hughes (Torquay) 21 Votes
Runner Up Charlie Vallelonga (St Mary’s) 
15 Votes

Under 17 Division 2
Best & Fairest Winner: 
Rory Desnoy (Leopold) 19 Votes
Runner Up Zeph Lamperd (Barwon 
Heads) 15 Votes

Under 17 Division 3
Best & Fairest Winner: 
Jordan Lyons (St Albans) 28 Votes
Runner Up Luke Preece (Drysdale) 24 
Votes

Under 17 Division 4
Best & Fairest Joint Winners: 
Jesse Stapleton (East Geelong) & Alex 
Podolak (Lara) 10 Votes

Under 15 Division 1
Best & Fairest Winner: 
Angus Hanley (Torquay) 25 Votes
Runner Up Joel Grigsby (Newtown & 
Chilwell) 19 Votes

Under 15 Division 2
Best & Fairest Winner: 
Joshua Sanders (Lara Founds) 23 
Votes
Runner Up George Melville (Colac) 19 
Votes

Under 15 Division 3
Best & Fairest Winner: 
Tyler Monahan (Queenscliff) 28 Votes
Runner Up Ike Hardman (Anglesea) 21 
Votes

Under 15 Division 4
Best & Fairest Winner: 
Sammy Lyons (St Albans) 32 Votes
Runner Up Jude Payne (East West 
Geelong) 26 Votes

Under 15 Division 5
Best & Fairest Winner: 
Mark Carter (Bannockburn) 15 Votes
Runner Up Oskar Abbott (Surf Coast 
Suns) 12 Votes

Under 15 Division 6
Best & Fairest Winner: 
Buckley Weber (Bell Post Hill) 28 Votes
Joint Runners Up Tyler Pok (Bell Park) & 
Zachary Zizas (Drysdale) 14 Votes

Under 15 Female Division 1
Best & Fairest Winner: 
Sara Howley (Newtown & Chilwell) 29 
Votes
Runner Up Kiara Woods (Geelong West 
Giants) 22 Votes

Under 15 Female Division 2
Best & Fairest Joint Winners: Michaela 
Payne (Barwon Heads) & Sienna 
Mallon (Colac Imperials) 21 Votes
Runner Up Lucy Marescuk (South 
Barwon) 20 Votes

Under 19 Male, Under 18 Female Football 
& Under 19 Netball Best & Fairest

BFNL SENIOR AWARDS

SENIOR FEMALE FOOTBALL AWARDS
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AFL BARWON FOOTBALL COMMISSION LIMITED 
ABN 90 160 417 845 

 
DIRECTORS' REPORT 
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Results 

The current year net profit amounted to $199,182 (2020: loss of $53,729). 

Short term and long-term objectives 

The short term and long-term objectives of the company are to deliver on the Vision, Mission and 
Values as well as action the strategic plan, focusing on; Participation, Community, Engagement, 
Development and Welfare, Facilities, Sustainability and People & Culture. 

Performance measurement 

The company uses the following key performance indicators to measure performance; 
• The net profit for the year amounted to $199,182 (2020: loss of $53,729). 

• Cash flow from operating activities for the financial year was $69,605 (2020: $123,121). 
• Membership for the financial year was 51 (2020: 51). 

Review of operations 

The company continues to engage in its principle activity, the results of which are disclosed in the 
attached financial statements. 

Significant changes in state of affairs 

AFL Barwon has been impacted significantly by COVID-19 with all senior football and netball seasons 
(including juniors) being disrupted greatly, eventually causing the cancellation of finals series. This 
impacted our revenue which impacted the organisations operating model.   

Principal activities 

The principal activity of the company during the year was the promotion Football and Netball in the 
AFL Barwon region.  

No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the year. 

After balance date events 

The Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic continues to impact Metropolitan Melbourne, Regional 
Victoria and Nationally where the company has operations.  
The association has responded to all Government measures and has COVID-safe plans. The 
potential impact on the association’s operations, cashflows and financial position cannot be 
reasonably estimated. 
No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly 
affected or may significantly affect the operations of the company, the results of those operations, or 
the state of affairs of the association in future financial years. 

Likely developments 

The company expects to maintain the present status and level of operations until COVID-19 
restrictions are eased which will allow sport to be played and the resumption of our main principal 
activity. 

Environmental regulation 

The company's operations are not regulated by any significant environmental regulation under a law 
of the Commonwealth or of a State or Territory. 
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The directors present their report together with the financial report of AFL Barwon Football 
Commission Limited for the year ended 31 October 2021 and auditors report thereon. This financial 
report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure 
Regime. 
 
Directors names 

The names of the directors in office at any time during or since the end of the year are: 
Craig Keating (Chairman) 

Michelle Gerdtz (Deputy Chairman) 

Nicola Wojcik 

Philippa Jankowski 

Robert Hallett 

David Milsome 

Richard Underwood 

Ian McTaggart  

 

The directors have been in office since the start of the year to the date of this report unless otherwise 
stated. 
 
Meeting of directors 

The number of meetings of the company's Board of Directors ('the Board') and of each Board 
committee held during the year ended 31 October 2021, and the number of meetings attended by 
each director were: 
  Full Board Audit Committee 

 
 

Attended 
 Eligible to 

Attend 
 

Attended 
 Eligible to 

Attend 
         
Craig Keating  12  12  -  - 
Michelle Gerdtz  12  12  -  - 
Nicola Wojcik  11  12  -  - 
Philippa Jankowski  6  12  -  - 
Robert Hallett  12  12  2  2 
David Milsome  12  12  2  2 
Richard Underwood  9  12  -  - 
Ian McTaggart  12  12  4  4 
Will McGregor   2  2  1  1 
Georgia Hillman  5  5  1  1 
Sean Atkinson  7  7  2  2 
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Auditor Independence Declaration Under S307C of the 
Corporations Act 2001 to the Directors of AFL Barwon 
Football Commission Limited 
 
I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 31 October 2021 there 
have been no contraventions of: 

1) The auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the 
audit; and 

2) Any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 

 
 
 
CROWE MELBOURNE 
 
 
 
 
Martin Thompson 
Senior Partner 
Geelong Victoria 
Dated this 18th day of November 2021 
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Members guarantee 

The company is incorporated under the Corporations Act 2001 and is a company limited by 
guarantee. If the company is wound up, the Constitution states that each member is required to 
contribute to a maximum of $1 each towards meeting any outstanding’s and obligations of the 
company. At 31 October 2021 the number of members was 51. The combined total amount that 
members of the company are liable to contribute if the company is wound up is $51. 
 
Indemnification of officers 

No indemnities have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end of the year, for 
any person who is or has been an officer of the company. 
 
Indemnification of auditors 

No indemnities have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end of the year, for 
any person who is or has been an auditor of the company.  

The board of Directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services during the year is 
compatible with the general standard of Independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 
2001. Directors are satisfied that non-audit services did not compromise the external auditor’s 
independence for the following reasons; 
 
- All non-audit services provided are reviewed and approved prior to commencement to ensure they 
do not adversely affect the integrity and objectivity of the auditor; and  
 
- The nature of services provided do not compromise the general principles in relation to auditor   
independence in accordance with APES 110: Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants set by the 
Accounting Professionals and Ethics Standard Board. 
 
Auditor's independence declaration 

A copy of the auditor's declaration under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the 
audit for the financial year is provided with this report. 
 
Proceedings on behalf of the company 

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the company or intervene 
in any proceedings to which the company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf 
of the company for all or any part of those proceedings. 

Signed on behalf of the board of directors. 

       
 
Director:  
    Craig Keating 

 
Director:  
     Michelle Gerdtz 
Dated this 16th day of November 2021 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2021 
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 Note 2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     

Current assets      

Cash and cash equivalents  2 466,345  543,054 
Receivables  3 22,919  14,315 
Inventories  4 245,878  133,467 
Other financial assets  108,852  - 
Total current assets   843,994  690,836 

     
Non-current assets      

Property, plant and equipment  5 56,589  48,119 
Total non-current assets   56,589  48,119 

     
Total assets   900,611  738,955 

     
Current liabilities      

Payables  6 32,233  58,642 
Borrowings  7 -  14,650 
Provisions  8 91,022  87,311 
Total current liabilities   123,255  160,603 

     
Non-current liabilities      

Provisions  8 7,314  7,492 
Total non-current liabilities   7,314  7,492 

     
Total liabilities   130,569  168,095 

     
Net assets   770,042  570,860 

     
Equity      

Reserves   250,098  250,098 
Retained surpluses  9 519,944  320,762 
Total equity   770,042  570,860 
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 Note  2021  2020 
  $  $ 

Revenue      
Club Payments  415,689  48,887 
Netball Income   75,240  13,126 
Umpires Income   542,995  53,875 
Merchandising  219,733  233,041 
Sponsors  280,250  181,540 
Grants  212,895  313,995 
Interest Income   529  1,044 
Sundry Income   42,412  27,800 
Tribunal Income  5,882  - 
AFL Victoria Funding  346,820  125,578 
  2,142,445  998,886 
Expenditure     
Umpires Expense  (477,061)  (62,969) 
Employee Benefits   (655,984)  (577,509) 
Cost of Goods Sold   (148,875)  (206,754) 
Finals Expense  (15,514)  (6,673) 
AFL Vic Development  (8,920)  (17,307) 
Netball Expense  (98,256)  (40,374) 
Media Expense  (43,784)  (2,175) 
Functions Expense  (5,396)  (7,575) 
Tribunal Expenses  (8,203)  (1,891) 
Pennants & Trophies   (34,652)  (6,538) 
Vehicle  (10,528)  (12,373) 
Other Staff Costs   (27,101)  (3,992) 
Communication Expenses  (19,523)  (20,026) 
Depreciation   (14,343)  (15,904) 
Sponsorship  (45,389)  - 
Affiliations   (215,446)  (273) 
Interest Expense   (491)  (2,025) 
Bank Charges   (1,882)  (2,793) 
Merchandising Expenses  (6,219)  (4,933) 
Utilities   (2,681)  (1,379) 
Other Expenses   (103,016)  (61,042) 
  (1,943,263)  (1,052,625) 
Surplus / (deficit) for the year  199,182  (53,729) 
Other Comprehensive Income  -  - 
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year  199,182  (53,729) 
     

 
 
 



77AFL BARWON 2021 ANNUAL REPORTAFL BARWON 2021 ANNUAL REPORT76

AFL BARWON FOOTBALL COMMISSION LIMITED 
ABN 90 160 417 845 

 
STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2021 
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 Note  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     

Cash flow from operating activities      
Receipts from customers   2,347,475  1,319,926 
Payments to suppliers and employees   (2,277,908)  (1,195,824) 
Interest received   529  1,044 
Interest paid   (491)  (2,025) 
Net cash (used in)/ provided by operating activities  10(b)  69,605  123,121 

     
Cash flow from investing activities      
Net payment for property, plant and equipment   (22,812)  (81) 
Payments for investments  (108,852)  - 
Net cash used in investing activities   (131,664)  (81) 

     
Cash flow from financing activities      
Payment for leases   (14,650)  (5,672) 
Net cash provided by financing activities   (14,650)  (5,672) 

     
Reconciliation of cash      
Cash at beginning of the financial year   543,054  425,686 
Net increase (decrease) in cash held   (76,709)  117,368 
Cash at end of the financial year  10(a)  466,345  543,054 
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  Reserves  Retained 

Surpluses 
Total 

Equity 
  $  $  $ 
       

       
Balance as at 1 November 2019 250,098  374,491  624,589 

       
Total comprehensive income for the year  -  (53,729)  (53,729) 

       
Balance as at 31 October 2020 250,098  320,762  570,860 

       
       
       

Balance as at 1 November 2020 250,098  320,762  570,860 
       

Total comprehensive income for the year  -  199,182  199,182 
       

Balance as at 31 October 2021 250,098  519,944  770,042 
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
(e) Inventories 
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  
 

(f) Property, plant and equipment 
Each class of plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any 
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 
Plant and equipment 
Plant and equipment is measured on the cost basis. 
The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by directors to ensure it is not in 
excess of the recoverable amount from those assets.  The recoverable amount is assessed on the 
basis of the expected net cash flows which will be received from the assets employment and 
subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows have not been discounted to present values in 
determining recoverable amounts. 
Depreciation 
The depreciable amount of all fixed assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives 
commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.     

Class of fixed asset  Depreciation 
rates 

 Depreciation basis  

Motor vehicles  15% Straight line 

Office furniture & equipment at cost  5 - 33% Straight line 

 
(g) Trade and other payables 
Trade and other payables represent the liabilities for goods and services received by the company 
during the reporting period that remain unpaid at the end of the reporting period. The balance is 
recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the 
liability. 
 
(h) Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the company has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of 
past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow 
can be reliably measured. 
 

(i) Employee benefits 
(i) Short-term employee benefit obligations 
Liabilities arising in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave, accumulated sick leave and any 
other employee benefits expected to be settled within twelve months of the reporting date are 
measured at their nominal amounts based on remuneration rates which are expected to be paid 
when the liability is settled. The expected cost of short-term employee benefits in the form of 
compensated absences such as annual leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. 
All other short-term employee benefit obligations are presented as payables. 
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
The financial statements are for AFL Barwon Football Commission Limited an individual entity, 
incorporated and domiciled in Australia.  AFL Barwon Football Commission is a company limited by 
guarantee. 

(a) Basis of preparation of the financial report 
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian 
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’) and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate for 
not-for-profit oriented entities. 
Historical Cost Convention 
The financial report has been prepared under the historical cost convention.  
Australian Accounting Standard’s set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would 
result in financial statements containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events 
and conditions.  Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements 
are presented below and have been consistently applied unless stated otherwise. 

The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an accrual 
basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair 
value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities.  The amounts 
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 
 

(b) Revenue 
Revenue, including government grant funding that is subject to a funding arrangement that is both 
enforceable and sufficiently specific regarding its purpose, is recognised at a point in time or over 
time, when (or as) the company satisfies performance obligations by transferring the promised goods 
to its customers. 
Revenue from the rendering of a service is recognised upon the delivery of the service to the 
customers. 
Government grant funding provided to the company in accordance with a funding arrangement that 
is not both enforceable and sufficiently specific regarding its purpose, is recognised as revenue in 
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the company obtains control 
of the grant and it is probable that the economic benefits gained from the grant will flow to the 
company and the amount of the grant can be measured reliably. 
Interest revenue is recognised when it becomes receivable on a proportional basis taking in to 
account the interest rates applicable to the financial assets. 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 
 
(c) Income tax 
No provision for income tax has been raised as the company is exempt from income tax under 
Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 
 

(d) Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at banks, short-term deposits with an original 
maturity of three months or less held at call with financial institutions, and bank overdrafts. Bank 
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of financial position. 
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
(m) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements 
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management 
continually evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to assets, liabilities, contingent 
liabilities, revenue and expenses. Management bases its judgements, estimates and assumptions 
on historical experience and on other various factors, including expectations of future events, which 
management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting 
judgements and estimates will seldom equal the related actual results. 
The judgements estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities (refer to the respective notes) within the 
next financial year are discussed below. 
 
Employee benefits provision 
As discussed in note 1(i), the liability for employee benefits expected to be settled more than 12 
months from the reporting date are recognised and measured at the present value of the estimated 
future cash flows to be made in respect of all employees at the reporting date. In determining the 
present value of the liability, estimates of attrition rates and pay increases through promotion and 
inflation have been taken into account. 
 
Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic 
Judgement has been exercised in considering the impacts that the Coronavirus (COVID-19) 
pandemic has had, or may have, on the Company based on known information. This consideration 
extends to the nature of the services offered, customers, and staffing. Other than as addressed in 
specific notes, there does not currently appear to be either any significant impact upon the financial 
statements or any significant uncertainties with respect to events or conditions which may impact 
the Company unfavourably as at the reporting date or subsequently as a result of the Coronavirus 
(COVID-19) pandemic. 
 
Key estimates 
Impairment 
The company assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluating conditions and 
events specific to the company that may be indicative of impairment triggers. 
 
(n) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations not yet mandatory or early adopted 
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but 
are not yet mandatory, have not been early adopted by the company for the annual reporting period 
ended 31 October 2021.  
The company has not yet assessed the impact of these new or amended Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations. 

(q) New Accounting Standards and interpretations applicable this year 
The Company has adopted all of the new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations 
issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current 
reporting period. 
Any new, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations that are not yet mandatory 
have not been early adopted. 
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
(ii) Long-term employee benefit obligations 
Liabilities arising in respect of long service leave and annual leave which is not expected to be settled 
within twelve months of the reporting date are measured at the present value of the estimated future 
cash outflow to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. 
Employee benefit obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does 
not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date, 
regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur. 

Contributions are made by the company to an employee superannuation fund and are charged as 
expenses as incurred.  
 

(j) Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs can include interest, amortisation of discounts or premiums relating to borrowings, 
ancillary costs incurred in connection with arrangement of borrowings, foreign exchange losses net 
of hedged amounts on borrowings. 
Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred, except for borrowing costs incurred as part of the cost of 
the construction of a qualifying asset are capitalised until the asset is ready for its intended use or 
sale. 
 

(k) Leases 
The company has adopted AASB 16 from 1 November 2019. The standard replaces AASB 117 
'Leases' and for lessees eliminates the classifications of operating leases and finance leases. Except 
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, right-of-use assets and corresponding lease 
liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial position. 
Straight-line operating lease expense recognition is replaced with a depreciation charge for the right-
of-use assets (included in operating costs) and an interest expense on the recognised lease liabilities 
(included in finance costs). For lessor accounting, the standard does not substantially change how a 
lessor accounts for leases. 
 
The company has elected not to apply the recognition and measurement criteria above to: 

(i) Short-term leases – where the lease term does not exceed 12 months; 
(ii) leases of low value assets – leases for which the underlying asset has a fair value below 

$10,000. 
 

Lease payments for leases that have been designated as short-term leases or leases of low value 
assets are expensed on either a straight-line basis over the lease term or another systematic basis. 
 

(l) Comparatives  
Where required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with 
changes in presentation for the current financial year. 
 
 
 
 
 

 



83AFL BARWON 2021 ANNUAL REPORTAFL BARWON 2021 ANNUAL REPORT82

AFL BARWON FOOTBALL COMMISSION LIMITED 
ABN 90 160 417 845 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2021 

 

 
- 14 - 

(a) Reconciliations 
Reconciliations of the written down values at the beginning and end of the current financial year are 
set out below: 
 Office 

Furniture & 
Equipment 

Motor 
Vehicles 

Motor 
Vehicles - 

ROU 

Office 
Improvements 

Total 

 $ $ $ $ $ 

Balance at 1 November 2020 820 - 15,993 31,306 48,119 

Additions 22,813 - - - 22,813 

Disposals - - - - - 

Depreciation (1,944) - (4,811) (7,588) (14,343) 

Balance as at 31 October 2021 21,688 - 11,182 23,719 56,589 
 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
NOTE 6: PAYABLES     
CURRENT      
Unsecured liabilities      
Trade creditors and accruals   32,233  58,642 
     
NOTE 7: LEASE LIABILITIES     
CURRENT      

Lease liability   -  14,650 
  -  14,650 

Total Borrowings  -  14,650 
     

NOTE 8: PROVISIONS     
CURRENT      

Annual leave   47,416  43,705 
Long service leave   43,606  43,606 

  91,022  87,311 
NON-CURRENT     
Long service leave   7,314  7,492 

  7,314  7,492 
Total Provisions  98,336  94,803 

     
NOTE 9: RETAINED EARNINGS     
Retained earnings at beginning of year   320,752  374,491 
Net profit (loss)  199,182  (53,739) 
Total Retained Earnings  519,934  320,752 
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  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     

NOTE 2: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS      
Cash at bank   466,345  541,131 
Cash on hand  -  1,923 

  466,345  543,054 
     

NOTE 3: RECEIVABLES      
CURRENT     
Trade debtors  21,179  12,575 
Undeposited funds  1,740  1,740 

  22,919  14,315 
     

NOTE 4: INVENTORIES     
CURRENT     
Inventory - at cost   245,878  133,467 

     
NOTE 5: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT     
Office furniture & equipment   137,973  115,161 
Accumulated depreciation   (116,285)  (114,341) 

  21,688  820 
     

Motor vehicles at cost   14,705  14,705 
Accumulated depreciation   (14,705)  (14,705) 
  -  - 
Right of Use Assets:     
Motor vehicles  32,073  32,073 
Accumulated depreciation  (20,891)  (16,080) 
  11,182  15,993 
     
Office improvements at cost   75,878  75,878 
Accumulated depreciation   (52,159)  (44,572) 

  23,719  31,306 
Total property, plant and equipment   56,589  48,119 
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NOTE 13: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES     
The company had no contingent liabilities as at 31 October 2021. (2020: nil) 

 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 

NOTE 14: COMMITMENTS     
     

a)     Lease Commitments      
Minimum low-value commitments payable     
-       Not later than one year  3,525  3,852 
-       Later than one year not later than five years  -  3,864 
Total minimum low-value lease payments  3,525  7,716 

     
NOTE 15: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS     

     
Key management personnel     
Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in Note 11. 
      
Transactions with related parties     
There were no transactions with related parties during the current and previous financial year. 

Receivable from and payable to related parties     
There were no trade receivables from or trade payables to related parties at the current and 
previous reporting date. 

 
NOTE 16: EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE 

The Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic continues to impact Metropolitan Melbourne, Regional 
Victoria and Nationally where the company has operations.  

The Association has responded to all Government measures and has COVID-safe plans. The 
potential impact on the company’s operations, cashflows and financial position cannot be reasonably 
estimated. 

No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly 
affected or may significantly affect the operations of the company, the results of those operations, or 
the state of affairs of the Association in future financial years. 
 
NOTE 17: COMPANY DETAILS 

The registered office of the company is: 

AFL Barwon Football Commission Limited 
'Highton Reserve' 
Roslyn Road, Highton 
Geelong  Victoria  3216 
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NOTE 10: CASH FLOW INFORMATION     

     

(a) Reconciliation of cash     
Cash at the end of the financial period as shown in the statement of cash flows is reconciled to the 
related items in the statement of financial position is as follows:  

Cash and cash equivalents  466,345  543,054 
     

(b) Reconciliation of cash flow from operations with 
profit after income tax 

    

Profit from ordinary activities after income tax   199,182  (53,729) 
     

Adjustments and non-cash items      

Depreciation   14,343  15,904 
     

Changes in assets and liabilities      

(Increase) / decrease in receivables   (8,633)  222,300 
(Increase) / decrease in inventories  (112,411)  (28,577) 
Increase / (decrease) in payables   (26,409)  (10,860) 
Increase / (decrease) in employee provisions  3,533  32,083 
Increase / (decrease) in income in advance  -  (54,000) 
Cash flows from operating activities   69,605  123,121 

     
NOTE 11: KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES 
Any person(s) having authority or responsibility for planning and controlling the activities of the 
Company, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity 
is considered key management personnel (KMP). The totals of remuneration paid to KMP of the 
company during the financial year are as follows: 

     
Total compensation paid to KMP  95,295  91,239 

     
NOTE 12: RESERVES     
$250,098 represents distribution received upon transition from Football & Netball Geelong Inc. to 
AFL Barwon Commission Limited. These funds have been quarantined in an equity reserve for the 
exclusive benefit of GFL and BFL Football Clubs.   

     
Capital profits reserve   250,098  250,098 
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Independent Auditor’s Report  
To the Members of AFL Barwon Football 
Commission Limited 
 

Qualified Opinion  
We have audited the financial report of AFL Baron Football Commission Limited (the Company), which 
comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 October 2021, the statement of comprehensive income, 
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the director’s declaration.  

In our opinion, except for the effects of such adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to be 
necessary had the limitation discussed in the qualification paragraph not existed, the accompanying financial 
report of the Company is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:  

(a) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 31 October 2021 and of its 
financial performance for the year then ended; and  

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the 
Corporations Regulations 2001.  

Basis for Qualified Opinion  
As is common for organisations of this type, it is not practical for AFL Barwon Football Commission Limited to 
maintain an effective system of internal control over receipts until their initial entry in the accounting records. 
Accordingly, our audit in relation to revenue was limited to amounts recorded. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of 
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of 
the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards 
Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter – Subsequent Event - COVID-19 
We draw attention to Note 16 to the financial report, which describes the effects of the Covid 19 epidemic in 
Metropolitan Melbourne and Regional Victoria as part of the Victorian Government State of Disaster. Our 
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
 
Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report  
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and 
fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the 
Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.  
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The directors of the company declare that: 

1. The attached financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 5-16 are in accordance with 
the Corporations Act 2001 and; 

a. comply with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements, the 
Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional reporting 
requirements; and 

b. give a true and fair view of the company’s financial position as at 31 October 2021 and 
of its performance for the financial year ended on that date. 

2. There are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and 
when they become due and payable. 

 

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors. 

 
 
 

 
Director:   
      Craig Keating 
 

 

 
Director:   
     Michelle Gerdtz 

 

Dated this 16th day of November 2021
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In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Company to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this 
financial report.  

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement 
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during the 
audit. 

CROWE MELBOURNE 
 
 
 
MARTIN THOMPSON  
Senior Partner 
Geelong, Victoria 
Dated:  18 November 2021 

NOTES



AFL BARWON 2021 ANNUAL REPORT90

NOTES



AFL BARWON 2021 ANNUAL REPORT92


